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NOTICE OF 08TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE EIGHTH (08TH) ANNUAL GENERALMEETINGOF THEMEMBERS OF TRIDHYA
TECH LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 26th, 2025 AT 11.00 A.M. THROUGH VIDEO
CONFERENCING/ OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS, TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:
ORDINARY BUSINESS
ITEM NO. 1: ADOPTION OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To receive, consider and adopt:
a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,

together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and
b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year endedMarch 31, 2025,

together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.
ITEM NO. 2: RE-APPOINTMENT OF A DIRECTOR
To re-appointMr. Vinay Shivji Dangar (DIN: 07212051),who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himselffor re-appointment.
SPECIAL BUSINESS
ITEM NO. 3: TO APPROVE THE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH TABLEFLOW TECH PRIVATE LIMITED
To pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and other
applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014,(“Rules”) and pursuant to the regulation 23(4) and another regulation of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”)
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, pursuant to the recommendation of Audit
Committee and Board of Member of the Company and the Company’s policy on Related Party transaction(s),
approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded for entering into or continuing to enter into to
contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)/ agreement(s) in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s
length basis with Tableflow Tech Private Limited, a ‘Related Party’ of the Company within the meaning of
Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, in the nature of a) sale, purchase,
lease or supply of goods; b) procurement or rendering of services; c) transfer of any resources, services or
obligations to meet the Company’s business objective/requirements; and d) availing/advancing of borrowings
/ inter corporate loans/ advances (“Related Party Transactions”), on an ongoing basis, whether individually
and/or in the aggregate shall not exceed INR 15 Crores (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only) during the financial year
2025-26, on such material terms and conditions as detailed in the explanatory statement to this resolution and
on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company (including any
Committee thereof) as deemed fit, from time to time;
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the
powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors of the Company and to do all
acts and take such steps asmay be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the aforesaid resolution;
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all aspects.”
ITEM NO. 4: TO APPROVE THE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH CODUP TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATELIMITED
To pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
““RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and other
applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014,(“Rules”) and pursuant to the regulation 23(4) and another regulation of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”)
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, pursuant to the recommendation of Audit
Committee and Board of Member of the Company and the Company’s policy on Related Party transaction(s),
approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded for entering into or continuing to enter into to
contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)/ agreement(s) in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s
length basis with Codup Technologies Private Limited, a ‘Related Party’ of the Company within the meaning of
Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, in the nature of a) sale, purchase,
lease or supply of goods; b) procurement or rendering of services; c) transfer of any resources, services or
obligations to meet the Company’s business objective/requirements; and d) availing/advancing of borrowings
/ inter corporate loans/ advances (“Related Party Transactions”), on an ongoing basis, whether individually
and/or in the aggregate shall not exceed INR 15 Crores (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only) during the financial year
2025-26, on such material terms and conditions as detailed in the explanatory statement to this resolution and
on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company (including any
Committee thereof) as deemed fit, from time to time;
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the
powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors of the Company and to do all
acts and take such steps asmay be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the aforesaid resolution;
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all aspects.”

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORSFOR, TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED
SD/-RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARANDMANAGING DIRECTORDIN: 07235447Registered Office:401, One World West, Near Ambli T-junction 200' S. P. Ring Road,

Bopal Ahmedabad Gujarat- 380058
Place: AhmedabadDate: 30/08/2025
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NOTES
1. An Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act and the otherapplicable provisions of the Act for the proposed Resolutions is annexed hereto. The approval of the Membersof the Company is being sought through the remote e-voting facility only.2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and

17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by
companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder on account of the threat posed by
Covid-19”, General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the
latest being 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 in relation to “Clarification on holding of annual general meeting
(AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)”, (collectively referred to as
“MCACirculars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC/OAVM, without the
physicalpresence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being held through VC /OAVM. The registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the
venue for the AGM.3. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by theMinistry of Corporate Affairs, the facility
to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, the Body
Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and
participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.4. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through
VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.5. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of theMeeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation
at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This
willnot include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend
theAGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.6. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 andMay 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting
to itsMembers in respect of the business to be transacted at theAGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered
into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through
electronicmeans, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting
system as wellas venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.8. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling
the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.tridhyatech.com/. The Notice can
also be accessed from the website of NSE Limited at www.nseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on
the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

9. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 20/09/2025 to26/09/2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.
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THE INSTRUCTION FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM AND JOININGMEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:
Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holdingshares in demat mode.
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode andnon-individual shareholders in demat mode.

1) The voting period begins on Tuesday, September 23rd, 2025 at 09.00 a.m. and ends on Thursday, September
25th, 2025 at 05.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) i.e. Friday, September 19th, 2025 may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

2) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting
venue.

3) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
listedentities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’
resolutions.
However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail
shareholders is at a negligible level.
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in
India.This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the
shareholders.
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided
toenable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demataccounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast
theirvote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication
but alsoenhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding
shares in demat mode.

4) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e- Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advisedto update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual
shareholdersholding securities in Demat mode is given below:
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IndividualShareholdersholdingsecurities inDemat modewith CDSLDepository

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
user idand password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without
any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click
on Login icon and select New SystemMyeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided
by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joiningvirtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is
also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home
page or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service
Providers.

Type of Login Methodshareholders
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IndividualShareholdersholdingsecurities indemat modewith NSDLDepository

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either ona
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click onthe
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication,
you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” undere-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e- Voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID
(i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

IndividualShareholders(holdingsecurities indemat mode)login throughtheirDepositoryParticipants(DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through yourDepository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successfullogin, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will beredirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you cansee e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and youwill be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during theremote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note:Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID andForgetPassword option available at abovementioned website.
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related tologinthrough Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securitiesin Demat mode with CDSL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

CDS helpdesk by sending a request a
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-
23058738 an 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding securitiesinDemat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login cancontact NSD helpdesk by sending a request atevoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990and 1800 22 44 30
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Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physicalmode andnon-individual shareholders in demat mode.
5) Login method of e-Voting for shareholders other than individual shareholders & physical shareholders.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an

earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individualPhysical Form
PAN Enter your 10- d i g i t alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)
 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank DetailsOR Date of Birth DOB)
Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyyformat) a recorded in your demat account or in the company recordsin order to login.If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company,please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bankdetails field amentioned in instruction (v).

7) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
8) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.

However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

9) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

10) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Tridhya Tech Limited> on which you choose to vote.11) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO”
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

12) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
13) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will

be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL”
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and accordingly modify your vote.

14) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
15) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
16) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and the image

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
17) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Voting
• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required tolog on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.
• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed tohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login andpassword. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and onapproval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.
• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favourof the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify thesame.
• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authorityletter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who areauthorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz;mjassociates.pcs@gmail.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSLe-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURINGMEETING ARE AS UNDER:
1) The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions

mentionedabove for Remote e-voting.
2) The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be

displayed aftersuccessful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.
3) Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However,

they willnot be eligible to vote at the AGM.
4) Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience
5) Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid anydisturbanceduring the meeting.
6) Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting

via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use StableWi-Fi or LANConnection tomitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7) Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves asa speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting mentioning
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at info@tridhyatech.com.
The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in
advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id,
mobile number at info@tridhyatech.com.These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by
email.

8) Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting.

9) Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted
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their vote onthe Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall
be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10) If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to
the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THEDEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED INTHIS NOTICE:
1. For Physical shareholders please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self-attested scanned copyof Aadhar Card) by email to info@tridhyatech.com.

2. For Demat shareholders, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16
digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
info@tridhyatech.com.

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respectiveDepository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings throughDepository.
If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can
writean email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 180021 09911.
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi,Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex,
Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai – 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 180021 09911.
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EXHIBIT TO THE NOTICE

ITEM NO. 2: RE-APPOINTMENT OF A DIRECTOR
Details of Directors seeking Appointment/Re‐appointment at the Annual General Meeting (Under Regulation
36 of the SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements, 2015)
1. MR. VINAY SHIVJI DANGAR
SR. NO. NAME OF DIRECTOR MR. VINAY SHIVJI DANGAR
1. DIN 07212051
2. Date of Birth September 27, 1990
3. Brief resume and nature of expertise in

specific functional areas
Mr. Vinay Shivji Dangar aged 35 years is the
Executive Director of the company. He is having 6
years of experience in Mining industry and 4 years
in IT Technology and holds degree of Bachelor of
Engineering in Mining from G.E.C College.

4. Date of first appointment on the Board 02nd February, 2018
5. Terms and conditions of appointment As mutually discussed and agreed.
6. Current designation Executive Director
6. Details of remuneration / sitting fees NIL
7. Shareholding in the Company (number of

shares as on the date of this AGM Notice)
27,48,800 Equity Shares

8. Disclosure of Relationships between
Directors inter-se

He is not related to any of the Directors of the
company.

9. Number of Board Meetings attended during
FY-25 and FY-26(up to the date of this AGM
Notice)

FY 2025: 9
FY 2026: 3

10. Directorships held in other companies*
(upto the date of this AGM Notice)

NIL

11. Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees
in other Public Companies

NIL

12. Name of listed companies from which
Director has resigned in past three years

NIL

13. Past Performance He has made significant contributions during
his tenure.

14. Reason for re-appointment He has made significant contributions during
his tenure.

14
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*Committee includes Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship
across all Listed Companies including this company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(5) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015
Item No. 03 & 04
Sr.
No.

Particulars Item No. 03 Item No. 04

Name of the related party Tableflow Tech Private
Limited

Codup Technologies Private Limited

1 its relationship with the listed entity or its
subsidiary, including nature of its concern
or interest (financial or otherwise)

A Subsidiary Company of Tridhya Tech Limited

2 Type and particulars of proposed
transactions

a) sale, purchase, lease or supply of goods or business assets or
property or equipment; and/or
b) availing or rendering of services etc.; and/or
c) transfer or share of any resources, services or obligations to meet
business objectives/requirements, etc.; and/or
d) Providing and/or receiving of loans, guarantees, or securities etc.

3 Material Terms of the proposed
transactions

Transactions in the ordinary course of business with terms and
conditions that are generally based on prevailing market
commercial that the Company operates in.

4 Tenure of the proposed transactions Contracts/arrangements during the Financial Year 2025-26
5 Value of the proposed transaction Up to INR 15 Crore (Fifteen crores)
6 The percentage of the listed entity’s annual

consolidated turnover, for the immediately
preceding financial year, that is represented
by the value of the proposed transaction
(and for a RPT involving a subsidiary, such
percentage calculated on the basis of the
subsidiary’s annual turnover on a
standalone basis shall be additionally
provided)

Approximately 0.63% of
annual consolidated turnover
of the Company for FY 2024-
25

Approximately 0.04% of annual
consolidated turnover of the
Company for FY 2024-25

7 Following additional disclosures to be made
If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-

Yes
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corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or given by the listed
entity or its subsidiary:

i details of the source of funds in connection
with the proposed transaction;

Internal accruals

ii where any financial indebtedness is incurred
to make or give loans, inter-corporate
deposits, advances or investments,
• nature of indebtedness;
• cost of funds; and
• tenure;

Not Applicable

iii applicable terms, including covenants,
tenure, interest rate and repayment
schedule, whether secured or unsecured; if
secured, the nature of security; and

The interest rate shall not be less than bank lending rate repayment
on demand un-secured for the FY 25-26 and will be in compliance
with Section 186 of the Act.

iv the purpose for which the funds will be
utilised by the ultimate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the RPT/proposed
transactions

The funds collected will be deployed in furtherance of their business
and operational activities.

8 Justification as to why the RPT/proposed
transactions is in the interest of the listed
entity.

This proposed Related Party Transaction is deemed to be in the best
interest of the listed entity as it enables access to critical
resources/services/expertise not readily available or commercially
viable from unrelated third parties, ensuring operational efficiency
and cost-effectiveness demonstrated through arm's length pricing
and robust market benchmarking. The transaction has undergone
rigorous scrutiny and prior approval by the Audit Committee,
comprising a majority of independent directors, and the Board of
Directors, adhering strictly to the Company's RPT Policy and all
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, thereby safeguarding the interests of all
stakeholders, including minority shareholders.

9 Any valuation or other external report relied
upon by the listed entity in relation to the
transactions.

Not applicable

10 Any other information thatmay be relevant. Not Applicable
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BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORSFOR, TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED

SD/-RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARANDMANAGING DIRECTORDIN: 07235447Registered Office:401, One World West, Near Ambli T-junction 200' S. P. Ring Road,
Bopal Ahmedabad Gujarat-380058
Place: AhmedabadDate: 30/08/2025
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TOTHE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY,
Your Directors feel great pleasure in presenting 08th Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2025.
1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Rs. in Lakhs)

STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED
S. No. PARTICULARS CURRENT YEARENDED MARCH31ST , 2025

PREVIOUS YEARENDED MARCH31ST, 2024
CURRENT YEARENDED MARCH31ST, 2025

PREVIOUS YEARENDED MARCH31ST, 2024
1. Total Revenue 3489.58 3424.29 3595.10 3527.76
2. Other Income 628.43 243.13 666.11 368.79
3. Total Income 4118.01 3667.42 4261.20 3896.55
4. Profit beforeDepreciation &AmortizationExpenses, FinanceCost and Tax

616.97 455.99 562.75 602.28

5. Less: Depreciation andAmortizationExpenses
(256.62) (174.32) (322.93) (219.99)

6. Less: Finance Cost (538.70) (273.04) (616.86) (378.45)
7. Profit before Tax (178.35) 8.63 -377.04 3.84
8. Less: Provision for Tax - 45.08 0.91 53.02
9. Profit after Tax (178.35) (36.45) (376.13) (49.19)
10. Earnings per share(EPS)Basic -0.77 -0.17 -1.53 -0.21

Diluted -0.77 -0.17 -1.53 -0.21
The Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended on March 31st, 2025 formspart of the Annual Report.
As per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has placed separate Auditedstatement of accounts of the Company and its Subsidiaries on its website: https://www.tridhyatech.com/ anda copy of audited financial statements of its Subsidiaries will be provided to shareholders upon their request.
2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS (Rs. in Lakhs)
On standalone basis, your company during the year under review has reported total revenue of Rs. 3489.58
Lakhs which is comparatively significant than last year’s total revenue of Rs. 3424.29 Lakhs. The net Loss of the
year under review is amounting to Rs. 178.35 Lakhs as against Profit of Rs. 8.63 Lakhs reported in the Previous
Year.
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On a Consolidation basis, Total Revenue of the Company during the Financial Year under review is Rs. 3595.10Lakhs.The Consolidated Profit/Loss after tax for the Financial Year under review is amounting to Rs. 377.04Lakhs. Moreover, your directors are continuously looking for new avenues for future growth of the companyand expect growth with introduction of better and varied product lines and accessories.
3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES
During the year under review, there was no amount transferred to any of the reserves by the Company.
4. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND ANY CHANGES THEREIN
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the company.
5. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board of Directors of the Company is a balanced one with an optimummix of Executive and Non-ExecutiveDirectors. The Directors have shown active participation at the board and committee meetings, whichenhances the transparency and adds value to their decision making. The Board of the Company is headed bythe Chairman. The Chairman takes the strategic decisions, frames the policy guidelines and extendswholehearted support to Executive Directors, business heads and associates.
The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025, are as follows:

Name of the Director Designation DINRAJ ARJANBHAI AHIR Non-Executive & Non Independent Director 08025164VINAY SHIVJI DANGAR Executive Director 07212051RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARAND Managing Director 07235447HETAL HARSHAL SOMANI Independent Non- Executive Director 09720365ASHUTOSH CHHAWCHHARIA Independent Non- Executive Director 05317799
The Board received a declaration from all the directors under Section 164 and other applicable provisions, ifany, of the Companies Act, 2013 that none of the directors of the company is disqualified under the provisionsof the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) or under the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 2015.
APPOINTMENT, RESIGNATION AND CHANGE IN DESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS:
During the financial year 2024-25, there were below mentioned changes in the board of directors of thecompany;

Name of the Director Designation Date ChangeGAURAV KUMAR BAROT DIRECTOR 29/04/2024 Resignation
RETIREMENT BY ROTATION:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Vinay ShivjiDangar (DIN: 07212051), Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meetingand being eligible, has offered himself for reappointment and your Board recommends her re- appointment.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Key ManagerialPersonnel of the Company as on March 31, 2025, are as follows:

Name of the KMP Designation Date of AppointmentRAHULBHAI LABANA CFO 05/07/2024BHANVI CHOUDHARY COMPANY SECRETARY 15/02/2024GAURAVKUMAR BAROT CEO 01/09/2023RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARAND MANAGING DIRECTOR 02/02/2018
During the financial year 2024-25, there were below mentioned changes in the Key Managerial Personnel ofthe company;
Name of the KMP Designation Date ChangeGAURAV HASMUKHRAY SHAH CFO 25/06/2024 ResignationRAHULBHAI LABANA CFO 05/07/2024 Appointment
Mr. Gauravkumar Barot (DIN: 06793134) has resigned from the post of CEO with effect from 30th July, 2025i.e. after the closure of the financial year but before the date of this Annual report.

6. DIVIDEND AND RESERVES
In view of inadequate profits, the Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the year underreview.
7. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
During the year under review, there is no unclaimed/unpaid dividend within the meaning of the provisions ofSection 125 of the Companies Act, 2013.
8. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY
The authorized Share Capital of the Company is ₹24,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Four Crore Only) divided into2,39,00,000 (Two Crore Thirty-Nine Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and 1,00,000 (OneLakh) preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only). During the year Company has not made any changes inits Authorized Share Capital.
The paid up Share Capital of the Company is ₹23,28,80,000 (Rupees Twenty-Three Crore Twenty-Eight Lacs andEighty Thousand Only).
9. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on the operations of the Company, as required under
Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as 'Listing Regulations') and as approved
by the Board of Directors, is provided in a separate section and forms an integral part of this Report.
10. ANNUAL RETURN
The Annual Return of the Company will be placed on the website of the company pursuant to the provisions ofSection92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, the web link ofthe same is at https://www.tridhyatech.com/.
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11. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 and76 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
12. PROMOTERS
As on March 31st, 2025, the Promoter & Promoter Group holding 1,43,30,000 Equity Shares in the Companywhich represents 61.53% of the Company’s subscribed, issued & paid-up Equity Share Capital.
The members may note that the shareholding and other details of Promoter & Promoter Group has beenprovided in Annual Return.
13. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them,yourDirectors make the following statement in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013:
a) That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31st, 2025, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if
any;

b) That the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
andestimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
companyat the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for the year ended March 31st,
2025;

c) That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Annual Accounts have been prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31st, 2025on a going concern basis;
e) That the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such

internalfinancial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and
f) That the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
14. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
As per the provisions of Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations andDisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the provisions related to Corporate Governance as specified inRegulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46and Para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not apply to a listed entity being listed on SME Exchange of NSE.
Accordingly the Company is not required to comply with the above provisions of Corporate Governance.
Therefore the Report on Corporate Governance and Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of CorporateGovernance are not made a part of the Annual Report.
15. CASH FLOW AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As required by Regulation 34(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015, Cash Flow Statement is appended.
As per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (herein referred to as “the Act”) and IND AS 110,the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements are provided in the Annual Report of the Company.
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16. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that theymeetwith the criteria of independence as prescribed under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 andRegulation 16 (1) (b) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015.
17. REMUNERATION / COMMISSION DRAWN FROM HOLDING / SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
During the year under review, none of the companies have transitioned to or from being our Company's HoldingCompany, accordingly there is no point for remuneration drawn from holding company.
Further during the year under review, no director has drawn remuneration or commission from any of itssubsidiary Company.
18. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Boardmeets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy apart fromotherBoard business. A tentative annual calendar of the Board and Committee Meetings is informed to theDirectors in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful participation in themeetings.
The notice of meeting of Directors and Committees is given well in advance to all the Directors of the Company.
The agenda of the Board / Committeemeetings is circulated not less than 7 days prior to the date of themeeting.
The agenda for the Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the
meeting toenable the Directors to take an informed decision.
During the year under review, 9(NINE) Board Meetings were convened and the intervening gap betweenwithin the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
NAME OF DIRECTOR CATEGORY NUMBER OFMEETINGS WHICHDIRECTOWASENTITLED TO ATTEND

MEETINGSATTENDED

Mr. GAURAVKUMARBAROT (Resigned with effectfrom April 29th, 2024)
Executive Director 0 0

Mr. VINAY SHIVJI DANGAR Executive Director 9 9
Mr. RAMESH ARJANBHAIMARAND Managing Director 9 9
MR. RAJ ARJANBHAI AHIR Non-Executive Director 9 9
Ms. HETAL HARSHALSOMANI Independent Director 9 6
Mr. ASHUTOSH CHHAWCHHARIA Independent Director 9 6

19. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate
meetingof the Independent Directors of the Company was held on March 05th, 2025 to review, among other
things, the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as whole, evaluation of the performance
of the Chairman and the flow of communication between the Board and the management of the Company.
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20. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Company’s Board has the following Committees:

➢ Audit Committee
➢ Nomination and Remuneration Committee
➢ Stakeholders Relationship Committee
i)AUDIT COMMITTEE:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,the Company has duly constituted its Audit Committee. The Committee is required to assist the Board in fulfillingits overall responsibilities of monitoring financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s establishedsystems and processes for internal financial controls, governance and reviewing the Company’s statutory andinternal audit activities. The Committee carries out its functions as per the powers and roles given underRegulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Part C of Schedule II and Act.
During the financial year 2024 -2025, (6) meetings of Audit Committee were held onMay 24th, 2024, September06th, 2024, October, 15th, 2024, October 17th, 2024, October 23rd, 2024 and February 21st, 2025.
The table below highlights the composition and attendance of the Members of the Committee. The requisitequorumwas present at all the Meetings:
NAME OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDEDMs. HETAL HARSHAL SOMANI MEMBER 6MR. RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARAND MEMBER 6Mr. ASHUTOSH CHHAWCHHARIA CHAIRMAN 6
The Company Secretary has acted as the Secretary to the Committee.
ii) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is duly constituted in accordance with Section 178 of theCompanies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 asamended from time to time.
During the financial year 2024-25, (3) meetings of NRC were held onMay 24th, 2024, July 05th, 2024 and October23rd, 2024.
The table below highlights the composition and attendance of the Members of the Committee. The requisitequorumwas present at the Meeting.

NAME OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDEDMs. HETAL HARSHAL SOMANI Chairman 3Mr. RAJ ARJANBHAI AHIR Member 3Mr. ASHUTOSH CHHAWCHHARIA Member 3
The Company Secretary has acted as the Secretary to the Committee.
The Board of Directors has framed “Remuneration and Nomination Policy” which lays down a framework in
relation toremuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. This
policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members. The said Policy is available at
the website of our Company.
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iii) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee is duly constituted in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013.
During the financial year 2024-25, two meeting of SRC were held on May 24th, 2025 and October 23rd, 2024.
The table below highlights the composition and attendance of the Members of the Committee. The requisite
quorum was present at the Meeting.

NAME OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDEDMR. VINAY SHIVJI DANGAR MEMBER 2MR. RAJ ARJANBHAI AHIR MEMBER 2Mr. ASHUTOSH CHHAWCHHARIA MEMBER 2
The Company Secretary has acted as the Secretary to the Committee.
Stakeholders Relationship Committee is empowered to oversee the Redressal of Stakeholders complaints
pertaining to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual reports, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
duplicate certificates, transmission /demat / remat of shares and other miscellaneous grievances.
The detailed particulars of Stakeholders complaints handled by the Company and its Registrar & Share Transfer
Agentduring the year 2024-25 are as under:

NATURE OF COMPLAINTS OPENING AT THEBEGINNINGOF YEAR
RECEIVEDDURING THEYEAR REDRESSED PENDING AT THEEND OF YEAR

Non-receipt of ShareCertificate Nil Nil -- Nil
Non-receipt of Dividend/Interest/ RedemptionWarrant Nil Nil -- Nil
Non-receipt of AnnualReport Nil Nil -- Nil
Others Nil Nil -- NilTotal Nil Nil -- Nil
21. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION BY THE BOARD
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, a structured questionnaire was prepared after
taking into consideration the various aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the Board and its
Committees, culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. The
performance evaluation of theDirectors was completed during the year under review.
The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the
IndependentDirectors and Non-Executive Director. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the
evaluation process.
22. DIRECTORS TRAINING AND FAMILIARIZATION
The Company undertakes and makes necessary provision of an appropriate induction programme for new
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Director(s) and ongoing training for existing Directors.
The new Director(s) are introduced to the Company culture, through appropriate training programmes. Such
kind of training programmes helps develop relationship of the directors with the Company and familiarize them
with Company processes.
The management provides such information and trainingeither at the meeting of Board of Directors or at other
places.
The induction process is designed to:

 build an understanding of the Company's processes and
 fully equip Directors to perform their role on the Board effectively

Upon appointment, Directors receive a Letter of Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of appointment,
duties, responsibilities and expectations from them.
23. DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY AUDITOR
As per auditors’ report, no fraud u/s 143 (12) reported by the auditor.
24. AUDITORS
(I) STATUTORY AUDITORS:
M/S MAAK & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad having Firm Registration No. 135024W, were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in Annual General Meeting held on September 30th, 2023 for
term of 4 (Four) Consecutive years, from the conclusion of the 6th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of
the 10th Annual General Meeting to be held in Financial Year 2027-28, for the remuneration as may be fixed by the
Board of Directors of the Company.
Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any
further comments. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors, in their
report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.
(II) INTERNAL AUDITORS:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, The Board of Directors, has appointed M/s Shah Sanghvi & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Ahmedabad as Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25.
(III) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
RemunerationofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the BoardhadappointedM/s. Shalini Pandey&Associates,Mumbai to conduct Secretarial Audit for the year ended on March 31st, 2025.
Secretarial Audit Report issued by M/s. Shalini Pandey & Associates, Company Secretaries in Form MR- 3 is
annexed herewith forms an integral part of this Report.
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The explanations / comments made by the Board relating to the qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks
made by the Secretarial Auditor are as follows:
Sr. No. Query Management reply
1. The Company has recently updated the website of the

Company as the per the requirement of Regulation 46
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. However, due to unforeseen
technical glitches, the website is currently not
functional.

The Management clarifies that the
Company is actively working on
resolving the issues and is expected
to be operational soon in
accordance with the regulatory
requirements.

2. The Company has incorporated its wholly-owned
subsidiary ‘Tridhya Tech Canada Inc.’ in Canada on
April 16th, 2024. However, the Company has not made
any intimation to the stock exchange in regards to the
said incorporation under Regulation 30 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. Further, the Overseas Direct
Investment (ODI) process in respect of the said WOS
is under process and the same has been delayed due
to procedural and documentation requirements.

The Management clarifies that the
delay was due to procedural and
operational requirements pending
on the part from counter party in
Canada and will provide timely
intimation to the stock exchange
after the completion of ODI. The
Company will be more diligent in
adhering with all the applicable
SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations and other applicable
acts.

3. The Company has incorporated its wholly-owned
subsidiary ‘Tridhya Tech UK Limited’ in England and
Wales on April 23rd, 2024. However, the Overseas
Direct Investment (ODI) in respect of the said wholly-
owned subsidiary was not undertaken simultaneously
and was duly completed on June 04th, 2025. Further,
the Company has also delayed in intimating to the
stock exchange regarding the said ODI within the
prescribed timeline under Regulation 30 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The Company has made compliance
of the same in delay manner and
has taken due action in order to
ensure timely compliance in future.

25. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Recordsand Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company is not required to maintain Cost Recordsunder said Rules.
26. INSURANCE
All the insurable interests of your Company including properties, equipment, stocks etc. are adequately insured.
27. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The company has in place Internal Financial Control system, commensurate with size & complexity of its
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operations toensure proper recording of financial and operational information & compliance of various internal
controls & other regulatory & statutory compliances. During the year under review, no material or serious
observation has been received from the Internal Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such
controls.
Internal Auditors’ comprising of professional Chartered Accountants monitor & evaluate the efficacy of Internal
Financial Control system in the company, its compliance with operating system, accounting procedures &
policies at all the locationsof the company. TheAudit Committeeof the BoardofDirectors and Statutory Auditors
are periodically apprised of the internal audit findings and corrective actions taken. Audit plays a key role in
providing assurance to theBoard of Directors. Significant audit observations and corrective actions taken by the
management are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.
28. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES
As the Company is not having net worth of rupees five hundred Crores or more, or turnover of rupees onethousand Crores or more or a net profit of rupees five Crores or more during previous financial year;
The Company is not required to comply with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with the
regardto the formation of the CSR Committee and undertaking of Social Expenditure as required under the said
Section.
29. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND JOINT VENTURES
The Company has been carrying on its operations through its subsidiary companies which includes Wholly
Owned Subsidiary as detailed below as on March 31st, 2025:

Name of the Company Relationship CIN With effect fromContcentric IT Services PrivateLimited Wholly Owned Subsidiary U72900GJ2016PTC092693 18/01/2022
Vedity Software Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary U72900GJ2021PTC121475 16/12/2022Basilroot Technologies PrivateLimited Wholly Owned Subsidiary U72900GJ2017PTC098260 06/12/2022
Tridhya Tech GMBH Associate Entity - 20/01/2022Table Flow Tech Private Limited Subsidiary U72200GJ2019PTC111578 30/09/2023Codup Technologies PrivateLimited Subsidiary U72900GJ2022PTC128923 27/11/2023

As Company have Subsidiaries or Associates Companies or Joint ventures, it is required to give disclosure in Form
AOC-1 annexed herewith as Annexure I Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule
5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
30. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
During the year under review, no employee was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits as prescribed
under provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
The necessary disclosure with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been appended as Annexure –II to this Report.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961
The Company is committed to upholding the rights and welfare of its employees, particularly in relation tomaternity benefits. In accordance with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, we have established a comprehensiveformal policy that outlines the provisions and entitlements available to our employees during maternity leave.
This policy ensures that all eligible employees receive the benefits mandated by the Act, including paidmaternityleave, medical benefits, and job security upon their return to work. We regularly review and update our policyto ensure compliancewith any amendments to the Act and to reflect best practices in supporting our employees.
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis, in
the ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing
Regulations.
The details have been enclosed pursuant to clause (h) of subsection (3) of Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 – ‘AOC-2’- Annexure III.
32. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING / OUTGO:
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreignexchange earnings and outgo etc., which is attached hereto as “Annexure IV”, which forms part of this Report.
33. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY
The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments, if any taken or given, have been disclosed in the financial
Statement.
34. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could affect the
Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and date of
this report.
Details of the transactions completed by your Company post-closing of the financial year ended March 31, 2025
are listed below:
1. Acquisition:
Acquisitions are an integral part of your Company’s business strategy because acquisitions help it advance in
strategic areas and capture high demand high-potential market opportunities.
Your Company’s goal is to foster building in emerging areas and accelerate its access in identified markets which
strengthened your Company’s presence which significantly improve its position in key market and segments.
The Company has incorporated its wholly-owned subsidiary ‘TRIDHYA TECH UK LIMITED’ in England and Wales
having registered office at UK dated April, 23rd, 2024 to expand our market reach and has completed the
Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) of the same dated June 04th, 2025 .
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2. Disinvestment:
The Company was holding 6.15 % of the total paid-up capital of ‘SOURCEPRO INFOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED’
(SIPL). In July, 2025, the Board has decided to sell its entire investment/stake in the equity shares of SIPL in the
board meeting.
3. Repayment of Loan:
The Company has fully and satisfactorily repaid the loan amounting to INR 7,50,00,000 (Rupees Seven Crore
Fifty Lakhs) in accordance with the terms and conditions of the loan agreement with Kotak Bank Limited, and
has received the Non-Objection Certificate from Kotak Bank Limited dated July 17th, 2025.
4. Change in Board Constitution
Mr. Gauravkumar Barot (PAN: AREPB9177C), Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has resigned from the post of the
Company with effect from July 30th, 2025.
35. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
In pursuance to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism / WhistleBlower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any.
The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has adopted a mechanism of reporting
illegalor unethical behavior. The Company has a whistle blower policy wherein the employees are free to report
violations of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct to their immediate supervisor or such other person as
may be notifiedby the management to the employees / workers.
The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors and employees who
avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in the
exceptional cases.
The confidentiality of those reporting violation is maintained and they are not subjected to any discriminatory
practice. However, no violation of laws or unethical conduct etc. was brought to the notice of the Management
or Audit Committee during the year ended March 31st, 2025.
We affirm that during the financial year 2024-25, no employee or director was denied access to the Audit
Committee.
36. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
Your Company has an elaborated risk Management procedure and adopted systematic approach to mitigate
risk associatedwith accomplishment of objectives, operations, revenues and regulations. Your Company believes
that thiswould ensure mitigating steps proactively and help to achieve stated objectives. The entity’s objectives
can be viewedin the context of four categories Strategic, Operations, Reporting and Compliance.
The Risk Management process of the Company focuses on three elements, viz. (1) Risk Assessment; (2) Risk
Management; (3) Risk Monitoring.
Audit Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility to assist the Board in (a) Overseeing and approving
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the Company’s enterprise wide risk management framework; and (b) Overseeing that all the risk that the
organization faces. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit Committee of the
Company. Signoificant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee.
The Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control environment and
monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating to strengthening of the
Company’s risk management policies and systems.
37. POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE
Your company believes in providing a healthy, safe and harassment-free workplace for all its employees. Further
company ensures that every women employee is treated with dignity and respect.
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy as per the requirements of The Sexual Harassmentof Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

Your Directors further states that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
Total Complaints reported under Sexual Harassmentof Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition andRedressal) Act, 2013 (POSH)

Nil

Complaints Resolved during the year NilPending Resolution at the end of the Year Nil
38. DETAILS OF APPLICATIONMADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCYCODE 2016
During the year under the review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the name of the
company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
39. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT ANDVALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOANFROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS.
During the year under the review, there has been no one-time settlement of loans taken from banks andfinancial institutions.
40. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDRAD OF ICSI
In terms of Section 118(10) of the Act, the Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards issued bythe Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors and GeneralMeetings and such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
41. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
The Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report for the year ended March 31, 2025 as stipulated underRegulation 34 of the Listing Regulations is not applicable to the Company.
42. GENERAL DISCLOSURE
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there wereno transactions on these items during the year under review:
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1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;
2. Issue of shares (sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under ESOS;
3. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the

goingconcern status and Company operations in future.
35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board of Directors wishes to express its gratitude and record its sincere appreciation for the commitment
and dedicated efforts put in by all the employees. Your Directors take this opportunity to express their grateful
appreciation for the encouragement, cooperation and support received by the Company from the local
authorities, bankers, clients, suppliers and business associates. The directors are thankful to the esteemed
shareholders for their continued support and the confidence reposed in the Company and its management.

FOR, TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED
SD/- SD/-RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARAND VINAY SHIVJI DANGARMANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTORDIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051

Registered Office:401, One World West, Near Ambli T-Junction 200' S. P. Ring Road,
Bopal Ahmedabad Gujarat- 380058
Place: AhmedabadDate: 30/08/2025
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Annexure IFormAOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014)Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate companies/Joint Ventures)
Part A: Subsidiaries (Rs. in Lakhs/-)SL NO 1 2 3 4 5Name of theSubsidiary Company CONTCENTRIC ITSERVICES PRIVATELIMITED

BASILROOTTECHNOLOGIESPRIVATELIMITED

VEDITYSOFTWAREPRIVATE LIMITED
TABLEFLOWTECH PRIVATELIMITED

CODUPTECHNOLOGIESPRIVATELIMITEDFinancial Year endingon March 31st, 2025 March 31st, 2025 March 31st, 2025 March 31st,2025 March31st, 2025Reporting Currency INR INR INR INR INR
Exchange Rate on thelast day of thefinancial year

NA NA NA NA NA

Share Capital 1 4.5 1 1 10Reserves & Surplus 363.03 34.59 23.14 45.18 -67.15Total Assets 1087.14 50.17 68.43 347.18 186.12Total Liabilities 1087.14 50.17 68.43 347.18 186.12Investments 151.71 - 37.52 100.00 -Turnover 124.90 - - 49.69 2.64Profit/(Loss) beforetax (104.65) (4.87) (5.13) 0.75 (64.39)
Provision for tax - (0.54) - 0.37 -Profit/(Loss) after tax (105.65) (4.33) (5.13) 1.12 (64.39)Proposed Dividend - - - - -% of shareholding 100% 100% 100% 51% 70%
Part B: Associates (Rs. in Lakhs/-)SL NO 1Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Tridhya Tech GMBHLatest audited Balance Sheet Date NA
Date on which the Associate or JointVenture was associated or acquired January 20, 2022
Shares of Associate/Joint Venturesheld by the Company on the year end NA
Number of Shares 10000 Equity Shares of TridhyaTech GMBH of € 10/- each
Amount of Investment inAssociates/Joint Ventures (Rs. inLakhs)

4.45

Extent of Holding % 33.33%
Description of how there is significantinfluence Associate Company
Reason why the Associate/JointVenture is not consolidated NA
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Net worth attributable toShareholding as per latest auditedBalance Sheet
NA

Profit/(Loss) for the year
Considered in Consolidation Yes
Not Considered in Consolidation N.A

FOR, TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED
SD/- SD/-RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARAND VINAY SHIVJI DANGARMANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTORDIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051

Registered Office:401, One World West, Near Ambli T-Junction 200' S. P. Ring Road,
Bopal Ahmedabad Gujarat- 380058
Place: AhmedabadDate: 30/08/2025
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Annexure II

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013READWITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIALPERSONNEL) RULES, 2014
The ratio of the remuneration of eachdirector to the median remunerationof the employees of the company forthe financial year 2024-25,

Ramesh ArjanbhaiMarand Vinay Shivji Dangar
Managing Director Director
4:1 N.A.

The ratio of the Fee for attendingBoard/Committee Meetings andCommission of each Director to themedianremuneration of the employees of theCompany for the financial year

Raj Arjanbhai Ahir Hetal Harshal Somani AshutoshChhawchhariaIndependent Director Independent Director IndependentDirectorN.A. 0.33:1 0.21:1

The percentage increase inremuneration of each director, if any,in the financial year 2024-25.
Ramesh ArjanbhaiMarand Vinay Shivji Dangar
Managing Director DirectorN.A. N.A.

The percentage increase inremuneration of each Key ManagerialPersonnel (KMP), if any, in thefinancial year 2024-25.

Rahulbhai Labana Bhanvi ChoudharyChief Financial Officer (CFO) Company Secretary
N.A. N.A.

(Explanation: (i) the expression “median” means the numerical value separating the higher half of a population from thelower half and the median of a finite list of numbers may be found by arranging all the observations from lowest valueto highest value and picking the middle one;(ii) if there is an even number of observations, the median shall be the average of the two middle values)
The number of permanent employeeson the rolls of the Company as on 31stMarch, 2025.

130

The percentage increase in themedianremuneration of employees in thefinancial year.
The median remuneration of the employees in the financial year wasincreased by 11.11%

Average percentile increase alreadymade in the salaries of employeesother than the managerial personnelin the last financial year and itscomparison with the percentileincrease in the managerialremuneration and justification thereofand point out if there are anyexceptional circumstances forincrease in the managerialremuneration.

Average incremental in FY 2025 for Managerial Personnel: N.A.
Average incremental in FY 2025 for Non-Managerial Personnel: 04.46%

No Exceptional increase given in the Managerial Remuneration
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Affirmation that the remuneration isas per the remuneration policy ofthe Company
Yes

*Median calculated is against employees active throughout the full financial year in FY 2025.
STATEMENT CONTAINING NAMES OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWNAND THE PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE ACT READWITH RULE 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OFMANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Name Designation Remuneration Nature ofEmployment Date ofjoining Age PreviousEmployment Shareholdingin theCompanySagar Shah Vice President INR25,80,000/- Full Time Employee 01-Feb-18 42 - -
Prashant Khanderia Project Manager INR16,86,000/- Full Time Employee 18-Oct-21 38 - -
Rajan Sheth Project Manager INR17,66,004/- Full Time Employee 23-Nov-21 37 - -
Bhaumik Nayak Delivery Manager INR19,20,000/- Full Time Employee 16-May-22 33 - -
Aadish Shah Team Leader INR16,00,008/- Full Time Employee 03-Oct-22 29 - -
Varshit Shah Team Leader INR17,40,000/- Full Time Employee 01-Apr-23 31 - -
Dharit Gajjar Vice President INR30,00,000/- Full Time Employee 03-Apr-23 36 - -
Purohit MananKiranbhai Team Lead INR23,00,004/- Full Time Employee 03-Oct-24 25 - -
Rishil Bhatt QA Manager INR25,00,008/- Full Time Employee 08-Apr-24 36 - -
Chirag Ladola Team Leader INR24,64,008/- Full Time Employee 03-Apr-24 45 - -

FOR, TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED
SD/- SD/-RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARAND VINAY SHIVJI DANGARMANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTORDIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051

Registered Office:401, One World West, Near Ambli T-Junction 200' S. P. Ring Road,
Bopal Ahmedabad Gujarat- 380058
Place: AhmedabadDate: 30/08/2025
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Annexure III FORMNO. AOC-2

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 8 (2) oftheCompanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
Form for disclosure of particulars of Contracts / Arrangements entered into by the Company with theRelated Parties referred to in Sub-Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 includingcertain Arm’s Length transactionsunder third proviso thereto:
A. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM’S LENGTH BASIS:There are nosuch transactions during the year which are not at arm’s length basis.
B. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARM’S LENGTH BASIS:
Name (s) of theRelated Party andnature of Relationship

Nature of contract/arrangementstransactions
Duration ofcontract/arrangements/transactions

Salient Termsof contract/arrangements/transactionsincluding thevalue ifany

Date(s) ofapproval bythe Board
Amountpaid asAdvances,if any

Contcentric IT ServicesPrivate Limited (Whollyowned Subsidiary)
 Rent Income Web developmentexpenses

Transactional  INR 1.2lakhs/- INR 37.51lakhs/-

24th May,2024 NIL

Ramesh ArjanbhaiMarand (ManagingDirector)
 Remuneration ExpensesReimbursement Interest Expense onloan Loan taken Loan Repaid

Transactional  INR 24 lakhs/- INR 11.61lakhs/- INR 161.02lakhs/- INR 3633.15lakhs/- INR 889.10lakhs/-

24th May,2024 NIL

Vinay Shivji Dangar(Director)  ExpensesReimbursement Transactional  INR 0.68 lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL
Raj Ahir (Director)  ExpensesReimbursement Transactional  INR 0.98 lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL
Bhavna Marand(Relative of Director)  ExpensesReimbursement Transactional  INR 1.99 lakhs 24th May,2024 NIL
Tridhya EnterpriseLLP(Director of theCompany is partner ofthe LLP)

 Rent Income Interest Income onloan Loan & Advancesgiven Loan & Advancesrepaid

Transactional  INR 3 lakhs/- INR 66.81lakhs/- INR 2303.58lakhs/- INR 2009.84lakhs/-

24th May,2024 NIL

BasilrootTechnologies PrivateLimited (WhollyOwned Subsidiary)

 Rent Income Transactional  INR 2.40lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL
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Vedity SoftwarePrivate Limited(Wholly OwnedSubsidiary)

 Rent Income Transactional  INR 2.40lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL

Table Flow TechPrivate Limited(Subsidiary)
 Rent Income Web developmentexpense Interest Income onloan Loan & advancesgiven Loan & advancesrepaid

Transactional  INR 3 lakhs/- INR 23.88lakhs/- INR 8.13 lakhs/-
 INR 90.34lakhs/- INR 4.39lakhs/-

24th May,2024 NIL

CodUp TechnologiesPrivate Limited(Subsidiary)
 Web developmentexpenses Interest Income onloan Loan & Advancesgiven Loan & Advancesrepaid

Transactional  INR 1.31 lakhs/-
 INR 9.16 lakhs/-
 INR 10 lakhs/-
 INR 0.92 lakhs/-

24th May,2024 NIL

Inexture SolutionsLimited (Prevouslyknown as InextureSolutions LLP) (CommonDirector)

 Web developmentexpense Transactional  INR 34.42lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL

Tana IT Services PrivateLimited (Relative ofDirector)
 Web developmentexpense Transactional  INR 14.40lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL

Shaligram Infotech LLP(Common Director)  Web developmentexpense Transactional  INR 14.42lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL

Tridhya Innovation LLP(Director of theCompany is Partner inthe LLP)

 Sale of services Transactional  INR 7.42 lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL

Tridhya SilwatechInformation TechnologyCo. L.L.C (Relative ofDirector)

 Sale of services Transactional  INR 96.24lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL

Ashapura Chinaclay Co.LLP (Relative of Directoris the Partner in the LLP)
 Rent Income Transactional  INR 0.60 lakhs/- 24th May,2024 NIL
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FOR, TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED

SD/- SD/-RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARAND VINAY SHIVJI DANGARMANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTORDIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051
Registered Office:401, One World West, Near Ambli T-Junction 200' S. P. Ring Road,
Bopal Ahmedabad Gujarat- 380058
Place: AhmedabadDate: 30/08/2025
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ANNEXURE IV

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS ANDOUTGO
PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THECOMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A) Conservation of Energy
a) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – The Operations of the Company do not

consume energy intensively. However, Company continues to implement prudent practices for
saving electricity and other energy resources in day-to-day activities.

b) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – Though the activitiesundertaken by the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall explore alternativesources of energy, as and when thenecessity arises.
B) Technology Absorption

a) The efforts made towards technology absorption – The Company continues to take prudential
measures in respect of technology absorption, adaptation and take innovative steps to use the
scarce resources effectively.

b) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginningof the financial year) – Not Applicable
C) Foreign Exchange and Outgo

During the Financial Year under review, the Foreign Exchange and Outgo are as below:
PARTICULARS YEAR ENDEDMARCH 31ST,2025 YEAR ENDEDMARCH 31ST,2024FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING 1866.23 1126.97FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO 1.0115 68.47

FOR, TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED
SD/- SD/-RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARAND VINAY SHIVJI DANGARMANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTORDIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051

Registered Office:401, One World West, Near Ambli T-Junction 200' S. P. Ring Road,
Bopal Ahmedabad Gujarat- 380058
Place: AhmedabadDate: 30/08/2025
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members of
TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED
401, One World West, Near Ambli T-junction 200',
S. P. Ring Road, Bopal, Ahmedabad - 380058, Gujarat, India.
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Tridhya Tech Limited (CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733) (hereinafter
called the “Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of Tridhya Tech Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by Tridhya Tech Limited (“the Company”) for the Financial Year ended on 31stMarch, 2025, according to the
provisions of: -

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; as applicable.
5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,

2011;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015;
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the

Company during the Audit Period);
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f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,

1993. (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,

2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulation,

2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to

the Company during the Audit Period);
We have also examined Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
During the period under review, the Company has compliedwith the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except:

A. The Company has recently updated the website of the Company as the per the requirement of Regulation
46 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. However, due to unforeseen technical glitches, the website is currently not functional.

B. The Company has incorporated its wholly-owned subsidiary ‘Tridhya Tech Canada Inc.’ in Canada on April
16th, 2024. However, the Company has not made any intimation to the stock exchange in regards to the
said incorporation under Regulation 30 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, the Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) process in
respect of the said WOS is under process and the same has been delayed due to procedural and
documentation requirements.

C. The Company has incorporated its wholly-owned subsidiary ‘Tridhya Tech UK Limited’ in England and Wales
on April 23rd, 2024. However, the Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) in respect of the said wholly-owned
subsidiary was not undertaken simultaneously and was duly completed on June 04th, 2025. Further, the
Company has also delayed in intimating to the stock exchange regarding the said ODI within the prescribed
timeline under Regulation 30 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent with shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part
of the minutes.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

41



Annual Report 2024-25
We further report that during the period under review, the Company has passed following resolutions in the
general meeting:

I. In the Annual General Meeting dated 30th September, 2024:
a) Appointment of Mr. Ashutosh Chhawchharia (DIN: 05317799) as an Independent Director of the Company

for a term of five consecutive years with effect from 29th November, 2023;
b) Approval to advance any loan/give guarantee/provide security u/s 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that during the period under review, the company had no significant events which had a
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc.

Date: 30/08/2025
Place: Mumbai

FOR, SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

SD/-
CS SHALINI PANDEY
C.O.P. NO. – 20576

FCS NO. 10462
PRC NO.: 5756/2024

UDIN: F010462G001121440

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - A and forms an integral
part of this report.
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Annexure -A’

To,
The Members of
TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED
401, One World West, Near Ambli T-junction 200',
S. P. Ring Road, Bopal, Ahmedabad - 380058, Gujarat, India
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 30/08/2025
Place: Mumbai

FOR, SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

SD/-
CS SHALINI PANDEY
C.O.P. NO. – 20576

FCS NO. 10462
PRC NO.: 5756/2024

UDIN: F010462G001121440
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Schedule - V

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
KEY ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY TRENDSThe IT sector has become one of the most significant growth catalysts for the Indian economy, contributingsignificantly to the country’s GDP and public welfare. India's IT sector witnessed a 16% YoY growth in hiringin April, driven by factors such as artificial intelligence (AI) adoption, cloud modernization, and the expansionof Global Capability Centers (GCCs). Global Capability Centres (GCCs) continued to expand with IT servicescompanies increasingly becoming meaningful partners to GCCs, supporting them with managed services,digital platforms and other frameworks that enable scalable and secure growth. The demand for Cloud,Cybersecurity, and AI/ML - based automation remains strong.
The Indian IT sector in 2024-25 is of major uncertainties in the economy, some geopolitical flux, and novelconcerns around protectionism led disruption of global balances. The world GDP grew at a steady rate of3.3%. The IT services growth during the same period has remained flat at 4.7%. India's IT industry is likely tohit the US$ 350 billionmark by 2026 and contribute 10% towards the country's gross domestic product (GDP),Infomerics Ratings said in a report. The export of IT services has been the major contributor, accounting formore than 53% of total IT exports (including hardware).
As innovative digital applications pervade sector after sector, the sector will continue to play a pivotal role inshaping the digital economy, contributing significantly to the nation's GDP. India is now prepared for the nextphase of growth in its IT revolution. India is viewed by the rest of the world as having one of the largestInternet user bases and the cheapest Internet rates, with 76 crore citizens now having access to the Internet.
Amid these ongoing macroeconomic challenges, new discretionary projects requiring technologyinvestments will face increased scrutiny and require stronger justifications for return on investment.Enterprises continued to rely on IT service providers to ensure business continuity and optimize operationsandwill continue to strengthen their cybersecuritymanagement processes, leading to continued investmentsin security consulting services.
BUSINESS OVERVIEWOur Company is a rapidly expanding conglomerate with a diverse portfolio of businesses and engaged in full-
service Software Development which includes all IT services and resources. With a global presence and deep
domain expertise acrossmultiple industry verticals, the Company offers a comprehensive portfolio of services
and offerings – grouped under application development and management, digital transformation, AI, data
and cloud services, engineering services, cognitive business operations, cyber security, and products &
platforms. We are recognized globally for our strong commitment to improve the communities we live and
work in.
We bring together our deep industry knowledge, technology expertise and partners to develop holistic
solutions for complex problems to provide customized software products, which starts from the initial
concept of the product requirement, designingthe architecture, coding and testing, deploying to the final
deployment of the product. Our core values are client value and customer satisfaction remains at the heart
of our business. We remain committed to conducting business in a socially, economically, and
environmentally responsible manner while considering the interests of all stakeholders, including the wider
community. We also provide post deployment support on time to time basis to our clients. We also provide
project management, consultation services, maintenance and support services to ensure the successful
completion of the project and longevity of the software. This helps to ensure that the software is properly
developed and deployed, meeting the expectations of the client. Webelieve in technological empowerment
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and provide end-to-end tech solutions to build an effective digital presence.
Tridhya has strong presence in international market i.e., Australia, Canada, Estonia, France, Germany, Israel,
Italy, Japan, Mauritius, Netherlands, Qatar, Singapore, Switzerland, UAE, UK, USA. In domestic market our
customer is basedon Maharashtra, Gujarat, Punjab, Telangana and Karnataka.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
 Experienced Promoter
 End-to-end IT Services under a single umbrella
 Quality Service
 Skilled Team

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY
 Prioritizing focus and dedication in Profitable markets
 Transforming and adapting time to build relevant new capabilities
 Embrace business opportunities by making the right investments
 Utilization of modern-day processes and technologies
 Optimization of operational, maintenance and other costs
STRATEGIC RESPONSES TO OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
Opportunity / Threat TRIDHYA APPROACHCompetition We face competition from various domestic and international players. Ourcompany operates in an industry that is highly fragmented comprising alarge number of domestic and international firms. It is a highly personalizedand relationship driven enterprise business. Further, innovation is a veryimportant driver in the software services business. We believe that ourability to compete effectively is primarily dependent on ensuring consistentquality service with on time delivery at competitive prices.
Growth in the Indianeconomy General economic conditions in India have a significant impact on our resultsof operations. The Indian economy has grown rapidly over the past decadeand is expected to continue to grow in the future. We believe growth in theoverall economy has driven, and will drive, the underlying demand for ourservices.
Fluctuations in demand forour services Supply and demandmarket conditions are affected by various factors outsideour control, including; Prevailing local economic, income and demographicconditions and changes in applicable regulatory schemes.
SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCEThe Company is carrying out its operations in IT Solutions Developments &Maintenance Services and IT StaffAugmentation.
RISK AND CONCERNThe risk management function is integral to the company and its objectives includes ensuring that critical risk
are identified continuously, monitored and managed effectively in order to protect the company’s business.
However, the changes in the tax laws, Government policies and regulatory requirement might affect the
company’s business. The management has laid down robust risk management framework essential for
identification, assessment, monitoring and mitigation of various risks to ensure smooth flow of operations
adhering to stringent guidelines.
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INITIATIVES BY THE COMPANYThe Company has taken the following initiatives:
Inorganic Growth
Inorganic growth is considered a faster way for a company to grow compared to organic growth. The
Company has adopted the policy of inorganic growth for faster development of the business, access to new
markets, boost company’s earnings and get the additional skills and expertise of new staff, the company,
acquired Two companies and in FY 2024-25 acquired another two companies for faster growth.
Upgrade and Refine
We are passionate about technology and so we keep up with the market pace to adapt rapidly as the
technology evolves. Being passionate about new tech trends, we easily upgrade our solutions with the
implementation of cutting- edge tech. We are flexible and keep on refining by incorporating high-end
solutions to stay aligned with the market.
Employee friendly policies for Human ResourcesIn IT related Company the success, growth and quality of the product and timely delivery of the productdepends upon the expertise, experience and skill of the employees. The Major cost component of theCompany is Employees salary and benefit cost. Our company has adopted employee friendly policies toattract, train, motivate and retained the employees for the Company. The Company are providing destresszones, Inhouse Cafeteria and good infrastructure facilities which reduces the employee turnover of thecompany. The best performing employees are rewarded by the Company in addition to the normalremuneration. The promoter has philosophy to share the wealth with the employees which has created withtheir dedication towards work.
Focus on a targeted client portfolioWe intend to build long-term sustainable business relationshipswith our clients to generate greater revenues.As partof the strategy, we plan to have an optimal client portfolio to better focus and serve our clients acrossthe geographies and industries in which we do business. Our ability to establish and strengthen clientrelationships and expand the scope of serviceswe offer to clients will help us grow our revenues and profits.
Focus on expansion across each vertical to capitalize on industry opportunityWe regularly track new technologies, industry segments and market trends in the IT solutions market. Weplan to expand our service offerings as and when there exists an opportunity. We believe that IT has greatpotential for development leading to value addition in the entire value chain. We propose to gain expertise inevery new technologyplatform coming up in themarket for value added services, cost-competitiveness, speedand easy to use. Our company proposes to use innovative ideas and concepts to achieve performanceparameters set by the clients in their day-to- day business processes.
Participating in Larger ProjectsWe are targeting clients who have the potential to offer opportunities with large total contract values. Weintend to originate large engagements by either identifying opportunities with our existing clients or bytargeting new clients whose existing engagements with IT vendors will be up for renewal.
Focus on greater internal operational efficiencyWe plan to develop and invest in frameworks, accelerators, in-house proprietary solutions and customizedsoftware processes to drive efficiencies internally. We also plan to increase our profitability by streamliningour cost structure with a focus on high employee utilization and optimizing resource mix.
OUTLOOK
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The profit margins in the industry are high. However, the Company has taken required remedial measures.The Company is confident to meet the challenges with its strength in marketing network, its strategicplanning, Research & Development and cost reduction exercise.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEWOn standalone basis, your company during the year under review has reported total revenue of Rs. 3,489.58Lakhs which is comparatively significant than last year’s total revenue of Rs. 3424.29 Lakhs. The net Loss ofthe year under review is amounting to Rs. (178.35) Lakhs as against profit Rs.8.63 Lakhs reported in thePrevious Year.
On a Consolidation basis, Total Revenue of the Company during the Financial Year under review is Rs.3,595.10 Lakhs. The Consolidated Profit after tax for the Financial Year under review is amounting to Rs.(357.37) Lakhs.
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOSParticular 2024-25 2023-24Standalone Consolidated Standalone ConsolidatedDebtors Turnover Ratio 3.31 3.24 4.57 3.43Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA NA NAInterest coverage ratio 0.67 -0.61 0.80 0.01Current Ratio 0.88 0.90 2.41 1.88Debt Equity Ratio 2.07 2.33 0.55 0.82Operating Profit Margin 0.10 -0.10 0.06 0.00Net Profit Margin -0.05 -0.10 -0.01 -0.01Return on Net worth -0.04 -0.08 -0.01 -0.01P/E Ratio -27.92 -14.05 -157.65 -127.62
DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUSFINANCIALYEAR ALONGWITH A DETAILED EXPLANATION THEREOF
The Company has acquired twomore private companies during the year and due to the investment companyhas earned less return as compare to last year.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & RISK MANAGEMENTThe Internal Control System facilitates the effectiveness and efficiency of Company operations and ensuresthe reliability of financial information and compliance with laws and regulations. In particular, the accountingcontrol system is an important element of the Internal Control System as it helps ensure that the Companyis not exposed to excessive financial risks and that financial internal and external reporting is reliable. YourCompany has robust internalaudit and control systems. They are responsible for independently evaluatingthe adequacy of internal controls and provide assurance those operations and business units adhere tointernal policies, processes and procedures as well as regulatory and legal requirements. Internal audit teamdefines and review scope, coordinates and conducts risk based internal audits with quarterly frequencyacross Company through their audit firm. Existing audit procedures are reviewed periodically to enhanceeffectiveness, usefulness and timeliness. The Internal control procedures include proper authorization andadherence to authorization matrix, segregation of roles and responsibilities, physically verification, checksand balances and preventive checks on Compliance risk and overseeing of periodical financials etc.
Internal audit entails risk assessment and detailed verification of processes, adequacy of maintenance ofaccounting records, documentation and supporting, authorizations, review of internal controls, compliancewith management policies and laid down procedures, compliance with applicable accounting standards andto verify adherence with applicable statutes, rules, regulation, byelaws, and circulars of the relevant statutoryand regulatory authorities.
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Your Company continuouslymonitors and revisits the risks associatedwith its business. It has institutionalizedthe procedure for identifying, minimizing and mitigating risks and the same are reviewed periodically. TheCompany’s Structured RiskManagement Process attempts to provide confidence to the stakeholders that theCompany’s risks areknown and well managed. The management of the Company has identified some of themajor areas of concern havinginherent risk, viz. Client Concentration, Technology Risks and Credit Control.The processes relating to minimizing the above risks have already been put in place at different levels ofmanagement. The management of the Company reviews the risk management processes andimplementation of risk mitigation plans. The processes are continuously improved. Risk Managementcomprises three key components which are as below: Risk identification Risk assessment and mitigation Risk monitoring and assurance.The risk mitigation plans are reviewed regularly by the Management and Audit Committee of yourCompany.
HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONSThe Company takes pride in the commitment, competence and dedication of its employees in all areas of thebusiness.The Company has a structured induction process at all locations and management developmentprograms to upgradeskills of managers. Objective appraisal systems based on key result areas (KRAs) are inplace for senior management staff. Human resource is considered as key to the future growth strategy of theCompany and looks upon to focus its efforts to further align human resource policies, processes and initiativesto meet its business needs. In order to focuson keeping employees abreast of technological and technicaldevelopments, the Company provides opportunity for training and learning. The overall Industrial relationsatmosphere continued to be cordial.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENTThe statements in the "Management Discussion and Analysis Report" section describes the Company'sobjectives, projections, estimates, expectations and predictions, which may be "forward looking statements"within the meaningof the applicable laws and regulations. The annual results can differ materially from thoseexpressed or implied, depending upon the economic and climatic conditions, Government policies and otherincidental factors.

FOR, TRIDHYA TECH LIMITED
SD/- SD/-RAMESH ARJANBHAI MARAND VINAY SHIVJI DANGARMANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTORDIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051

Registered Office:401, One World West, Near Ambli T-Junction 200' S. P. Ring Road,
Bopal Ahmedabad Gujarat- 380058
Place: AhmedabadDate: 30/08/2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To The Members of Tridhya Tech Limited  
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements   
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Tridhya Tech Limited (“the 
Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 
and the Cash Flow Statement for the period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as 
amended (“Accounting Standards”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit/loss and its cash flows for the period ended on 
that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 

 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Directors Report 

(the “Reports”), but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. 

 

 Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information, and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

 In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

 If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements   
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with the Accounting Standards and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements   
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
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the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 

a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that: 

 

A. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

 

B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

 

C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

 
D. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

 
E. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 
F. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our 

report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s 

internal financial controls over financial reporting. 
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G. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information, and according to the explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the period is in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 

H. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

 
b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses. 

 
c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

i. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have 

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 

entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that the Intermediary shall: 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company. 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
ii. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have 

been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding 

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company 

shall: 

 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party  

or 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

and 

 
iii. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub 

clause (d) (I) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

 
d) The Company has not paid any dividend during the period and hence, compliance with Section 123 

of the Act is not applicable. 

 

e) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software 

systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which 

have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout 

the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course 
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of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and 

the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record 

retention. 

 

(viii) Reporting as required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act and the same is attached herewith as 

Annexure-A. 

 
 

 
  

 For MAAK & Associates 

 Chartered Accountants 

 (Firm’s Registration No. – 135024W) 

  

   SD/- 

 Marmik Shah 

 (Partner) 

Place: Ahmedabad  (M. No. 133926) 

Date: May 21, 2025 UDIN:  25139533BMLCYC5275 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
Report of even date) 
  

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the company, the company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and the situation of property, plant, and equipment. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has maintained the register 
of intangible assets. 
 
(c) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management in a phased 
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period, in which our opinion, is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the company and nature of its business and no material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification. 
 
(d) The company has maintained a record of holding any immovable properties. 
 
(e) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or 
intangible assets or both during the year; the clause for revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both is not applicable. 
 
(f) No any proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 
(ii)   (a) As explained to us, the company does not have any inventory during the year. Accordingly, the 

reporting requirements under clause (ii)(a) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not 
applicable. 
 

         (b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of ₹5 crores, in aggregate, 
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the year. Hence, the 
provisions of clause (ii)(b) are not applicable. 

 
(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the Company, we report that: 
 

(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans or provided security to the 
following entities during the year: 
           (Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars Guarantees Security Deposit Loans 
Advance 
in nature 
of loans 

Aggregate amount 
granted/provided 
during the year 

- 41.90 
                      
-    

9,015.92 

-Subsidiary - - 
                              
-    

117.63 

-Others - 41.90 
                      
-    

8,898.29 
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Balance outstanding as 
at balance sheet date 

- 80.86 
                      
-    

8,680.08 

-Subsidiary - - 
                      
-    

8,620.82 

-Others - 80.86 
                      
-    

59.26 

         
(b) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us the investments made, 
guarantees provided, security given, and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in 
the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest; 
 
(c) According to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of 
loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the 
repayments or receipts are regular; 
 
(d)  According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no overdue amount remaining 
outstanding as at the Balance sheet. 

 
(e) According to information and explanation given to us the company has not given any loan to the party, 
the clause for any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has 
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same 
parties, is not applicable to the company. 

 
(f) According to information and explanation given to us the company has not granted any loans or advances 
to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the nature 
of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment; 
  
 
              (Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties 

Aggregate amount of loans 
& advances in nature of 
loan 

8,680.08                     -    - 

-Repayable on demand (A) 8,680.08                     -    8,620.82 

- Aggregate does not specify 
any terms or period of 
repayment (B) 

-                      -    - 

Total (A+B) 8,680.08                      -    8,620.82 

Percentage of loans/ 
advances in nature of loans 
to the total loans 

100%                     -    99.32% 

 
 

(iv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 

the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, 

guarantees and security. 

  

55



       Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

(v) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits as 

defined in the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3(v) of 

the order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 

148 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the business activities carried out by the Company, and therefore, 

reporting under Clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(vii) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

 

1.  The Company has been regularly depositing undisputed statutory dues. 

2.  There were no undisputed amounts payable as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six 

months from the date they became payable. 

 
(b) The Company has no disputed outstanding statutory dues as at 31st March, 2025. 
 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no such transactions found  which is 
not recorded in the books of account, so this clause of any transactions not recorded in the books of account 
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), if so, whether the previously unrecorded income has been properly recorded in the 
books of account during is not applicable to company; 
 

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 

in the repayment of loans and borrowings to financial institutions and banks. 

 
(b) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company is not a declared 
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender; 
 
(c) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has applied term 
loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained; 
 
(d) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has not utilized 
funds raised on a short-term basis have been utilized for long-term purposes. 
 
(e) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates 
or joint ventures, this clause is not applicable to the company.  
(f) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised 
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies. 
 

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised 

money by way of an initial public offer during the year (including debt instruments).  

 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 

or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally), and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order 

is not applicable. 
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(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 

by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 

reported during the course of our audit. 

 
(b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us no report 
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year 
and up to the date of this report. 
 
(c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are 
no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the company and accordingly, no reporting is 
required under this clause. 

 
(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 

company. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance 

with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable for all transactions with related 

parties and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 

applicable accounting standards. 

 
(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company has an 

internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business, the clause for section 138 of 

the Act is applicable to the company. 

 
 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company has an 
internal audit system, the clause for reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were 
considered by the statutory auditor is applicable to the company. 

 
(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company 

has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them and hence 

provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

Therefore, the reporting under clause (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

 
(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration 
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India; accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the company. 
 
(d) The Group does not have any Core Investment Company as part of the group and accordingly reporting 
under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us Company has not incurred 

cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

 
(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, the provisions 

of clause 3(xviii) of the order are not applicable. 
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment 

of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the 

Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty 

exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 

existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 

sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 

any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 

sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 
(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, other than ongoing projects, 

the company has not transferred an unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies 

Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year. the clause for the second proviso to 

sub-section (5) of section 135 is not applicable to the company. 

  

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there have been no 

qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 

(CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 For MAAK & Associates 

 Chartered Accountants 

 (Firm’s Registration No. – 135024W) 

  

    SD/- 

 Marmik Shah 

 (Partner) 

Place: Ahmedabad  (M.No. 133926) 

Date: May 21, 2025 UDIN: 25139533BMLCYC5275                      

58



       Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of the even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tridhya Tech Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of 
the Company for the period ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and its joint operations companies incorporated in India (as applicable) based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and 
maintained, and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and its operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
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dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based 
on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 For MAAK & Associates 

 Chartered Accountants 

 (Firm’s Registration No. – 135024W) 

   

 SD/- 

 Marmik Shah 

 (Partner) 

Place: Ahmedabad  (M.No. 133926) 

Date: May 21, 2025 UDIN: 25139533BMLCYC5275                      
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Tridhya Tech Limited 

CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2025 

(₹ in Lakhs) 

Particulars Notes 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 Shareholders’ Funds 

(a) Share Capital 

(b) Reserve and Surplus 
 

2 Non-current Liabilities 

(a) Long-Term Borrowings 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

(c) Long-term Provisions 
 

3 Current Liabilities 

(a) Short-Term Borrowings 

(b) Trade Payables 

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 

(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 

than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

(c) Other Current Liabilities 

(d) Short Term Provisions 

 

 
2 

 

 
2,328.80 

 

 
2,328.80 

3 2,076.81 2,255.17 

 
4 

 
1,276.01 

 
2,254.55 

5 - - 

6 86.95 115.34 

 
7 

 
7,837.65 

 
252.38 

8   

 32.10 - 

 
196.73 76.97 

9 243.44 320.80 

10 26.42 67.86 

Total  14,104.91 7,671.87 

II. ASSETS 

1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible 

Assets 

(i) Tangible Assets 

(ii) Intangible assets 

(iii) Intangible assets under Development 

(iv) Capital Work-In-Progress 

(b) Non-Current Investments 

(c) Long-Term Loans And Advances 

(d) Other Non-Current Assets 
 

2 Current Assets 

(a) Current Investment 

(b) Trade Receivables 

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(d) Short-Term Loans And Advances 

(e ) Other Current Assets 

  
 
 
 

 
1,204.10 

 
 
 
 

 
1,021.86 

11 
729.54 

- 

5.12 

771.04 
 6.76 - 

12 2,038.41 2,038.41 

13 2,681.67 2,027.64 

14 80.86 75.02 

 
15 

 
10.33 

 
- 

16 725.11 1,385.69 

17 17.05 132.20 

18 6,231.35 0.70 

19 379.73 214.19 

Total  14,104.91 7,671.87 

Summary of significant accounting policies 1   

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.  

As per our report attached of even date 

For M A A K & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants Tridhya Tech Limited 

(FRN – 135024W) 
  

 SD/- SD/- SD/- 
 
CA Marmik Shah 

Partner 

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 

(Managing Director) 

Vinay Shivji Dangar 

(Director) 

(MRN - 133926) DIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051 

 
 SD/- SD/- 

Place: Ahmedabad Rahul Labana Bhanvi Choudhary 

Date: May 21, 2025 

UDIN: 25139533BMLCYC5275 

(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 
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Tridhya Tech Limited 

CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(₹ in Lakhs except EPS) 

Sr 

No. 
Particulars Notes 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

 
1 

Income: 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total revenue(1+2) 

Expense: 

(a) Purchases & operating expense 

(b) Employee benefit expense 

(c) Finance cost 

(d) Depreciation and amortization expense 

(e) Other expense 

 
Total expense 

 
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items, extraordinary 

items and tax (3-4) 

Exceptional items 

 
Profit / (loss) before extra ordinary items and tax (5-6) 

Extra ordinary items 

Net profit / (loss) from ordinary activities before tax(7- 

8) 

Tax expense 

(a) Current tax 

(b) Deferred tax 

Profit/(loss) for the year 

Paid up equity share capital (Face value Rs. 10) 

Earnings per share 

Basic & diluted earnings per share 

 
20 

 
3,489.58 

 
3,424.29 

2 21 628.43 243.13 

3  4,118.01 3,667.42 

4 
   

 
22 1,251.14 575.05 

 23 1,732.52 2,207.00 

 24 538.70 273.04 

 11 256.62 174.32 

 25 517.38 429.38 

  4,296.36 3,658.79 

 
5 

 

 
-178.35 

 
8.63 

6  - - 

7 
 

-178.35 8.63 

8  - - 

9 
 

-178.35 8.63 

10    

  - 52.16 

  - -7.08 

11  -178.35 -36.45 

12  2,328.80 2,328.80 

13    

 26 -0.77 -0.17 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our report attached of even date 

For M A A K & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants Tridhya Tech Limited 
(FRN – 135024W) 

 
 SD/- SD/- SD/- 
  

CA Marmik Shah 

Partner 

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 

(Managing Director) 

Vinay Shivji Dangar 

(Director) 

(MRN - 133926) DIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051 

 

 SD/- SD/- 
Place: Ahmedabad Rahul Labana Bhanvi Choudhary 

Date: May 21, 2025 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 

UDIN: 25139533BMLCYC5275   
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Tridhya Tech Limited 

CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

(₹ in Lakhs) 

S.N. Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

A Cash Flow from the Operating Activities     

 Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  -178.35  8.63 

Add: Adjustments for - Depreciation and Ammortization 256.62  174.32  

Add: Finance Cost 538.70  273.04  

Add: Provision for Gratuity -  83.28  

Add: Provision for Expenses 26.42  15.71  

Less: Foreign Exchange Gain -17.32  5.23  

Add: Profit/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 35.89  -19.28  

Less Discount Received -0.30    

Less: Interest Income 

 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 

Changes in Working Capital 

Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Provisions 

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  

Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 

Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Non-Current Assets 

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 

(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances 

 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets 

Cash Generated from Operations 

Less - Net Tax Paid 

Net Cash Flow Generated from / (Used in) Operating 

Activities (A) 

-512.67  -200.40  

 327.33  331.89 

 

 
-28.39 

152.17 

-77.36 

7,585.28 

-67.86 

-5.84 

677.90 

 
-6,009.33 

-165.54 

148.98  

 
81.83 

53.31 

-101.88 

-125.14 

-129.29 

-27.76 

-929.75 

 
1,678.33 

-148.17 

340.52 

  

 2,061.01  351.48 

 -  52.16 

 
2,209.99 

 
744.15 

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

Inflows 

Interest Income Received on Others 

Outflows 

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible 

Assets 

Purchase of CWIP Assets 

Purchase of Investments 

Changes in Long Term Loans & Advances 

Net Cash Flow Generated from / (Used in) Investing 

Activities (B) 

 

 
54.27 

 

 
-428.13 

-6.76 

-10.33 

-416.96 

 

 
200.40 

 

 
-511.31 

- 

-310.50 

-2,027.64 

  
-807.91 

  
-2,649.05 

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities   

 Proceeds from Equity Share Capital Issued - 2,588.79 
 Increase in Borrowings -1,240.18 -281.68 

 Finance Cost of Interest & Other -277.07 -273.04 

 Net Cash Flow Generated from / (Used in) Financing     

 Activities (C) -1,517.25 2,034.07 

 

 
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents 

 
 

-115.15 

 
 

129.19 

 Cash & Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 132.20 3.01 

Cash & Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)  17.05  132.20 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents consists of :- 

    

(i) Cash-in-hand 0.84 0.63 

(ii) Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 16.21 131.57 

Total  17.05  132.20 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

For M A A K & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants Tridhya Tech Limited 

(FRN – 135024W) 

 SD/- SD/- SD/- 
CA Marmik Shah 

Partner 

(MRN - 133926) 

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 

(Managing Director) 

DIN: 07235447  

Vinay Shivji Dangar 

(Director) 

DIN: 07212051 
   

                   Place: Ahmedabad Rahul Labana                                          Bhanvi Choudhary 
                   Date: May 21, 2025    (Chief Financial Officer)   (Company Secretary)                         

UDIN: 25139533BMLCYC5275                                         
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Tridhya Tech Limited 
CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

                                                                                              

1.1 Corporate Information 

Tridhya Tech Limited (the company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated 

under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The company is engaged in the Information technology 

business. 

1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

1.2.1 Basis of Preparation of Accounts 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 

Act"), as applicable. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost 

convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent 

with those followed in the previous year. 

 
Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent and in consonance with generally 

accepted accounting principles in India. 

 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal 

operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of 

products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 

equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current – 

non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 
1.2.2 Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the 

financial statements and revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that 

these estimates and assumptions are reasonable and prudent. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as 

the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. However, actual 

results could differ from assumptions and estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialized. 

1.2.3 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from Operations includes revenue from rendering of software development services and other 

revenue incidental to it. Revenue from services is recognised as the service is performed and there is no 

uncertainty to expect ultimate collection of its consideration. 

1.2.4 Property, Plant & Equipments 

All Fixed Assets are recorded at cost including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses incurred 

in relation to their acquisition and bringing the asset to its intended use. 

1.2.5 Depreciation/Amortisation 

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the 

useful lives estimated by the management, or those prescribed under the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 

2013. Individual assets cost of which doesn’t exceed Rs. 5,000/- each are depreciated in full in the year of 

purchase. Intangible assets including internally developed intangible assets are amortised over the year for 

which the company expects the benefits to accrue. Intangible Asset - Software is amortised with a useful life 

of 3 years. 
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Tridhya Tech Limited 
CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

                                                                                              

 
1.2.6 Current Tax and Deferred Tax 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance 

with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the 

accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent 

periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as at 

the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets in 

respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognised only if there is virtual 

certainty with convincing evidence that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise 

such assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences of other items only to the extent that 

reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these can be 

realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the 

same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax 

assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for their realisability. 

 
1.2.7 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provision involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement is recognized when there is a present 

obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent 

liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor 

disclosed in the financial statements. 

1.2.8 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and deposit with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances 

(with an original maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that 

are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 

value. 

1.2.9 Impairment of Assets 

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. Recoverable 

amount is the higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of 

estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at 

the end of its useful life. Net selling price is the amount obtainable from sale of the asset in an arm's length 

transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. An impairment loss is 

charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The 

impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the 

estimate of the recoverable value. 

1.2.10 Earning per Share 

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of 

extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earning per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect 

of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net 

of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of 

equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

                                                                                              

 
1.2.11 Foreign Currency Transactions 

(a) Initial Recognition 

The Foreign Currency Transaction are recorded initially by applying to the foreign currency amount 

the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 

transaction. 

(b) Subsequent Recognition on Balance Sheet Date 

(i) Foreign Currency Monetary Items are be reported using the closing rates. 

(ii) Non-monetary Items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are 

reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

(iii) Non-monetary items which are carried at fair value are reported using the exchange rates that 

existed when the values were determined. 

(c) Recognition of Exchange Difference 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items during the year or on reporting an 

enterprise’s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during 

the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses during 

the year. 

1.2.12 Retirement Benefits to Employees - Gratuity 

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible 

employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation 

or termination of employment, of an amount as per the as per the Payment of Gratuity, 1972. 

 
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation at each Balance Sheet date 

using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognizes the obligation of the gratuity plan in the 

Balance Sheet as a liability in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 15, ‘Employee Benefits’. Actuarial 

gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. 

1.2.13 Operating Lease 

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased 

item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the 

statement of profit and loss, on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

1.2.14 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as 

part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to 

get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue. 

 
1.2.15 Other Income 

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 

the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head "other income" in the statement of 

profit and loss. 
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(₹ in Lakhs) 

 
2 

 
Share Capital 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

 
No. of Shares 

 
Amount 

 
No. of Shares 

 
Amount 

(a) Authorized Share Capital 

Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each 

Preference Shares of ₹ 10/- each 

 
2,39,00,000.00 

1,00,000.00 

 
2,390.00 

10.00 

 
2,39,00,000 

1,00,000 

 
2,390.00 

10.00 

  2,40,00,000.00 2,400.00 2,40,00,000 2,400.00 

(b) Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Share Capital 

Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each fully paid-up 
 

2,32,88,000.00 
 

2,328.80 
 

2,32,88,000 
 

2,328.80 

Total 2,32,88,000.00 2,328.80 2,32,88,000 2,328.80 

Note: 

During the financial year and preceding five financial years, the Company has: 

(i) allotted fully paid-up equity shares by way of intial public offer; 

(ii) allotted fully paid-up equity shares by way of bonus shares; 

(iii) Consolidated Shares from Rs. 5/- to Rs. 10/- each. 

During the financial year and preceding five financial years, the Company has not: 

(i) allotted any equity shares pursuant to any contract without payment being received in cash; 

(ii) brought back any equity shares 

 
A. Reconciliation of the Shares Outstanding at the Beginning and at the End of the Reporting Period: 

  
 

 
Particulars 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

 
 

 
No. of Shares 

 
 

 
Amount 

 
 

 
No. of Shares 

 
 

 
Amount 

 

Add : 

Add : 

Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each 

Opening Share Capital 

Equity shares issued during the year 

Total 

Equity Shares Issued 

 
2,32,88,000.00 

- 

 
2,328.80 

- 

 
1,70,00,000 

- 

 
1,700.00 

- 

2,32,88,000.00 2,328.80 1,70,00,000 1,700.00 

- - 62,88,000.00 628.80 

Closing Share capital 2,32,88,000.00 2,328.80 2,32,88,000 2,328.80 

 
Note: 

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to shares: 

(i) 

 
(ii) 

 
(iii)  

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote 

per share held and carry a right to dividend. 

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual 

General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. 

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after 

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

 
B. Particulars of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Share Capital: 

 
Name of Shareholder 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

 
No. of Shares 

% of Total 

shares 

 
No. of Shares 

% of Total 

shares 

 Equity Shareholders     

(a) Vinay Shivji Dangar 27,48,800.00 11.80% 59,05,200.00 25.00% 

(b) Tridhya Consultancy LLP 20,86,200.00 8.96% 20,86,200.00 9.00% 

(c) Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 57,55,600.00 24.71% 56,77,600.00 24.00% 

(d) Maa Informatics LLP 17,30,000.00 7.43% 24,14,000.00 10.00% 

(e) Taraash Pharma LLP 16,68,000.00 7.16% - 0.00% 

(f) Tridhya Trade Stocks LLP 36,03,400.00 15.47% - 0.00% 

Total 1,75,92,000.00 75.54% 1,60,83,000.00 68.00% 
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C. Shareholding of promoters as at 31st March, 2025 

Shareholding of promoters as at 31st March, 2024 

Notes Related to Share Capital 

 

 

 

 

 
Sr. No. Name of Promotor No. of shares % of Total shares % change during the year 

1 Vinay Shivji Dangar 27,48,800 11.80% 13.20% 

2 Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 57,55,600 24.71% -0.71% 

Total 85,04,400 36.52% 12.48% 

 
Sr. No. Name of Promotor No. of shares % of Total shares % change during the year 

1 Vinay Shivji Dangar 59,05,200 25.00% - 

2 Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 56,77,600 24.00% - 

Total 1,15,82,800 49.00% - 
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3 Reserve and Surplus 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

  
Securities Premium 

  

Opening balance 2,012.16 - 

Add: Received on issue of shares - 2,012.16 

Less: Utilised towards issue of bonus shares - - 

Closing balance 2,012.16 2,012.16 

Surplus / (deficit) in statement of profit & loss   

Balance as per last financial statements 243.01 279.47 

Add: Profit / (loss) for the year -178.35 -36.45 

Less: Utilised towards issue of bonus shares - - 

Balance of statement of profit & loss 64.65 243.01 
   

Total 2,076.81 2,255.17 

 

4 Long-Term Borrowings 
As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Secured   

 Term Loan   

 -Bank 1,006.13 1,058.48 
 -Other 124.22 163.43 

(b) Unsecured 
  

 Term Loan   

 -Banks. 1.22 31.18 
 -Others. 144.43 249.16 
 -Related Party. - 752.30 

Total 1,276.01 2,254.55 

 

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment 

Loan of ₹ 500 Lakhs from Kotak is secured by mortgage of 

office premises. 

Loan is repayable in 120 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 250 Lakhs from Kotak is secured by mortgage of 

office premises. 

Loan is repayable in 120 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 56.16 Lakhs from Yes Bank is secured by mortgage 

of property 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 35 Lakhs from HDFC Bank is unsecured. Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 202.50 Lakhs from Ratnaafin Capital Private Limited 

is secured by mortgage of residential properties owned by the 

directors (Partly Disbursed till Dec'22) 

Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 53.9 Lakhs from HDFC Bank is Secured against 

Audi Q5 Car 

Loan is repayable in 84 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 29 Lakhs from Bank of India is Secured against 

Innova Car 

Loan is repayable in 84 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 35 Lakhs from Aditya Birla Capital is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 30 Lakhs from ASHV is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 
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Nature of Security Terms of Repayment 

Loan of ₹ 29 Lakhs from Axis Bank Ltd. is unsecured Loan is paid during the financial year 

Loan of ₹ 20.07 Lakhs from Chola is unsecured Loan is repayable in 37 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 45.9 Lakhs from Credit Saison India is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50 Lakhs from Deutsche Bank is unsecured Loan is repayable in 24 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 30.15 Lakhs from Hero Fincorp is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 35 Lakhs from Indusland Bank Ltd. is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 25 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 13 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 35 Lakhs from L&T Finance is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 40 Lakhs from Protium Finance is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 30 Lakhs from Tata is unsecured Loan is repayable in 18 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 25.1 Lakhs from UGRO Capital is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 30.6 Lakhs from Unity Small Finance Bank Ltd. is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50 Lakhs from Infibeam Projects Management Pvt. 

Ltd. is unsecured 

Loan is paid during the financial year 

Loan of ₹ 50 Lakhs from ODIGMA Consultancy Solutions Pvt. 

Ltd. is unsecured 

Loan is paid during the financial year 

Loan of ₹ 270 Lakhs from Axis Bank is Secured against 

Mercedese 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 21.90 Lakhs from SBI Bank is Secured against Hector 

Loan 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 70.00 Lakhs from Axis Bank is secured against Car Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 270.00 Lakhs from Bank of India is secured against 

property 

Loan is repayable in 120 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 600.00 Lakhs from Chotu Solutions Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 3,000.00 Lakhs from Infibeam Avenues Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable within 6 months from the date of 

agreement 

Loan of ₹ 28.87 Lakhs from Bajaj Finance Ltd is unsecured Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50.00 Lakhs from Clix Capital Services Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 28.65 Lakhs from Fedbank Financail Services Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 
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Nature of Security Terms of Repayment 

Loan of ₹ 17.93 Lakhs from Girnar Software Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is paid during the financial year 

Loan of ₹ 50.00 Lakhs from Kisetsu Saison Finance (India) 

Private Limited is unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 30.00 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 13 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50.00 Lakhs from NeoGrowth Credit Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 19 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 100.00 Lakhs from Ratnafin Capital Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 51.00 Lakhs from Unity Small Finance Bank is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50.00 Lakhs from Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd is secured 

against car 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

 

5 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

 Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) arising on account of   

-Due to difference in WDV as per Companies Act, 2013 and Income 

Tax Act, 1961 
 

- 
 

7.08 

Adjustment of Deffered Tax Asset - -7.08 

-Due to the disallowances of expenses under Income Tax Act - - 

Total - - 

 

6 Long-term Provisions 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) Provision for Employee Benefits 

Provision for Gratuity 

 

 
86.95 

 

 
115.34 

Total 86.95 115.34 

 

7 Short-Term Borrowings 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Secured   

 Demand Overdraft from Banks 230.93 252.38 
 Balance in Current Account - - 

(b) Unsecured Term Loan 
  

 -Banks. 10.90  

 -Others. 3,559.46  

 -Related Party. 3,657.37  

 Current Maturities of Long-term Debt 378.99 - 

Total 7,837.65 252.38 

Note: Demand Overdraft from Yes Bank is secured against mortgage of office premises and term loan from Infibeam Projects 

Management Private Limited and Odigma Consultancy Solutions Private Limited is unsecured. 
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00 

8 Trade Payables 
As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

(b) 

 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises. 

 
32.10 

 
196.73 

- 

 
76.97 

Total 228.83 76.97 

(a) 

(b) 

Note: 
Payable to related parties 
Payable to others 

11.71 
217.12 

9.00 

67.97 

Total 228.83 76.97 

Notes: 

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2025 

Sr. No. Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

< 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years > 3 Years Total 

1 MSME 32.10 - - - 32.10 

2 Other than MSME 196.73 - - - 196.73 

3 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - 

 
4 

Disputed dues - Other 

than MSME 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 

Total 228.83 - - - 228.83 

Unbilled Dues - 

Total Trade Payables 228.83 

 
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024 

Sr. No. Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

< 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years > 3 Years Total 

1 MSME - - - - - 

2 Other than MSME 76.97 - - - 76.97 

3 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - 

 
4 

Disputed dues - Other 

than MSME 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 

Total 76.97 - - - 76.97 

Unbilled Dues - 

Total Trade Payables 76.97 

 
 

9 Other Current Liabilities 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Advance from Customers 

  
3.07 

 
- 

(b) Salary Payable  94.38 - 

(c) Other payables  27.75 220.89 
 Statutory Dues Payable    

 (i) Statutory Liabilities (includes Provident Fund,    

 Profession Tax, Tax Deducted at Source and Goods    

 and Service Tax) - 118.24 99.91 

Total 243.44 320.80 

 

10 Short Term Provisions 
As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Provision for employee benefits 

Provision for Expenses 

Provision for Taxation (Net of Advance tax and TDS) 

 

 
26.42 

- 

 

 
15.71 

52.16 

Total 26.42 67.86 
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11 Property, Plant and Equipment 

 
Sr. No 

 
Particulars 

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block 

As on April 

01, 2024 

Addition 

during the 

year 

Deduction 

during the 

year 

As on March 

31, 2025 

As on April 

01, 2024 

Addition 

during the 

year 

Deduction 

during the 

year 

As on March 

31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 

2025 

As on March 

31, 2024 

A 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Tangible Assets 

Land 

Office Building 

Furniture and Fittings 

Computers 

Office Equipment 

Electrical Installation 

Motor vehicle 

 
0.22 

87.44 

425.71 

328.77 

127.61 

20.34 

435.17 

 
- 

382.21 

0.38 

40.62 

8.14 

2.81 

- 

 
- 

87.44 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 
0.22 

382.20 

426.09 

369.39 

135.75 

23.15 

435.17 

 
- 

51.55 

94.31 

174.50 

58.70 

2.58 

21.75 

 
- 

5.97 

42.45 

84.60 

26.50 

2.09 

54.42 

 
- 

51.55 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 
- 

5.97 

136.76 

259.10 

85.20 

4.68 

76.16 

 
0.22 

376.23 

289.33 

110.29 

50.55 

18.47 

359.00 

 
0.22 

35.89 

331.40 

154.27 

68.91 

17.75 

413.42 

 Total 1,425.26 434.17 87.44 1,771.98 403.40 216.04 51.55 567.89 1,204.10 1,021.86 

B 

1 

Intangible Assets 

Web Site and Software 
 

8.20 
 

765.00 
 

- 
 

773.20 
 

3.08 
 

40.58 
 

- 
 

43.66 
 

729.54 
 

5.12 

 Total 8.20 765.00 - 773.20 3.08 40.58 - 43.66 729.54 5.12 

C 

1 

2 

Work-In-Progress 

Software WIP 

Capital WIP 

 
765.00 

6.04 

 

- 

0.72 

 
765.00 

- 

 

- 

6.76 

 
- 

- 

 
- 

- 

 
- 

- 

 
- 

- 

 

- 

6.76 

 
765.00 

6.04 

 Total 771.04 0.72 765.00 6.76 - - - - 6.76 771.04 
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12 Non-Current Investments 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 
 (Unquoted, Non-Trade, At Cost)  

 

 
741.00 

 
210.00 

 
401.50 

 
300.00 

 
10.50 

 

 
4.45 

 

 
229.98 

 
140.98 

 
 

 
741.00 

 
210.00 

 
401.50 

 
300.00 

 
10.50 

 

 
4.45 

 

 
229.98 

 
140.98 

(a) Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary Company 
 (i) 10000 (P.y. 10000) Equity Shares of Contcentric IT Services Private Limited 

 of ₹ 10/- each 

 (ii) 10000 (P.y. 10000) Equity Shares of Basilroot Technologies Private Limited 

 of ₹ 10/- each 

 (iii) 10000 (P.y. 10000 ) Equity Shares of Vedity Software Private Limited of ₹ 

 10/- each 

 (iv) 5100 (P.y. 5100) Equity Shares of Tableflow Tech Private Limited of ₹ 10/- 
 each 
 (v) 700000 (P.y. 700000 ) Equity Shares of Codeup Technologies Private 

 Limited of ₹ 1/- each 

(b) Investment in Equity Instruments of Associate Company 

 (i) 10000 (P.y. 10000) Equity Shares of Tridhya Tech GmBH of € 10/- each 

(c) Investment in Equity Instruments of other companies: 
 (i) 32575 (P.y. 32575) Equity Shares of Sourcepro Infotech Private Limited of ₹ 

 10/- each 

 (ii) 7049020 (P.y. 7049020) Equity Shares of Stitched Textile Limited of ₹ 10/- 

 each 

Total 2,038.41 2,038.41 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  - 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  - 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,038.41 2,038.41 

Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments - - 

 

13 Long-Term Loans And Advances 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

Unsecured, Considered good 

Other loans and advances 
 

2,681.67 
 

2,027.64 

Total 2,681.67 2,028 

 

14 Other Non-Current Assets 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Security Deposits 

 
80.86 

 
75.02 

  80.86 75.02 

 

15 Current Investments 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Fixed Deposit with Bank 10.33 - 

  10.33 - 
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16 Trade Receivables 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
(b) 

Unsecured, Considered Good 

- Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due 

for payment 

- Other Trade Receivables 

 

- 

725.11 

 
 

 
- 

1,385.69 

Total 725.11 1,385.69 

 
Notes: 

Trade receivables ageing schedule for March 31, 2025 

Sr. 

No. 
Particulars 

for 

following  
Total 

  
< 6 Months 

6 Months - 1 

Year 
1 - 2 Year > 3 Year 

1 Undisputed Trade receivables – 

considered good 

725.11 - - - 725.11 

2 Undisputed Trade Receivables – 

considered doubtful 

- - - - - 

3 Disputed Trade Receivables 

considered good 

- - - - - 

4 Disputed Trade Receivables 

considered doubtful 

- - - - - 

Total 725.11 - - - 725.11 

Total - Billed 725.11 

Add: Unbilled Receivables - 

Total 725.11 

 
Trade receivables ageing schedule for March 31, 2024 

Sr. 

No. 
Particulars 

for 

following  
Total 

  
< 6 Months 

6 Months - 1 

Year 
1 - 2 Year > 3 Year 

1 
Undisputed Trade receivables – 

considered good 

1,185.69 -  
- 

 
- 

1,185.69 

2 
Undisputed Trade Receivables – 

considered doubtful 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 

3 
Disputed Trade Receivables 

considered good 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 

4 
Disputed Trade Receivables 

considered doubtful 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 

Total 1,185.69 - - - 1,185.69 

Total - Billed 1,185.69 

Add: Unbilled Receivables 200.00 

Total 1,385.69 
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Note: 
During the year, the Company has granted inter-corporate deposits to entities bearing interest at 8% per annum, 

 

 

17 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

(b) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

- Cash-in-Hand 

- Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 

 
0.84 

16.21 

 
0.63 

131.57 

Total 17.05 132.20 

 

18 Short-Term Loans And Advances 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Others 

Considered Good unless otherwise specified 

(i) Vendor Advances 

(ii) Staff Advances 

(iii) Loan to Others 

 
 

 
5.67 

4.36 

6,221.33 

 
 

 
- 

0.70 

- 

Total 6,231.35 0.70 

 
 

 

19 Other Current Assets 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

Reimbursements & Receivables 

Prepaid Expenses 

Balance with Revenue Authorities 

2.83 

14.72 

362.19 

0.14 

10.55 

203.49 

Total 379.73 214.19 
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20 
 
Revenue from Operations 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Sale of Services 

-Domestic 

-Export 

 
1,623.34 

1,866.23 

 
2,297.32 

1,126.97 

Total 3,489.58 3,424.29 

 

21 Other Income 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Interest Income 512.67 200.40 

(b) Profit on sale of fixed assets - 19.28 

(c) Discount Received 0.30 0.10 

(d) Rent Income 32.39 11.46 

(e) Gain on Translation of Foreign Exchange 17.32 - 

(f) IT Subsidy 65.07 11.88 

(g) Miscellaneous Income 0.68 - 

Total 628.43 243.13 

 
 

22 Purchases & Operating Expense 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Web Development Expenses 1,251.14 575.05 

Total 1,251.14 575.05 

 

23 Employee Benefit Expenses 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Salaries and Allowances 1,682.04 2,026.91 

(b) Remuneration to Directors and KMPs 24.00 48.00 

(c) Contribution to Provident Fund and ESIC 1.61 2.01 

(d) Gratuity Expenses - 83.28 

(e) Staff welfare expenses 24.87 46.80 

Total 1,732.52 2,207.00 

 

24 Finance Cost 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Loan Processing Fees 12.50 3.05 

(b) Interest on Borrowings 519.74 265.86 

(c) Interest on Late Payment of Taxes 6.46 4.13 

Total 538.70 273.04 
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25 Other Expenses 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(g) 

(h) 

(i) 

(k) 

(l) 

(m) 

(n) 

(o) 

(p) 

(q) 

(r ) 

Auditor's Remuneration 

Electricity, Power & Fuel 

Bank Charges 

Insurance Charges 

Miscellaneous fees and expenses 

Printing & Stationery 

Legal & Professional Fee 

Office Expenses 

Repair & Maintenance 

Webhosting and Portal Charges 

Telephone & Internet Charges 

Travelling Expenses 

Rates & Taxes 

Office Rent 

Commission Expense 

Loss on Translation of Foreign Exchange 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 

2.20 

24.46 

5.53 

4.90 

25.76 

1.86 

49.83 

40.64 

9.02 

120.92 

6.26 

80.20 

6.29 

91.55 

12.07 

- 

35.89 

2.20 

25.39 

- 

0.28 

25.17 

2.38 

168.61 

48.96 

9.25 

77.09 

6.79 

58.02 

- 

- 

- 

5.23 

- 

Total 517.38 429.38 

 
 

(i) 

Note: 

Remuneration to Auditors (including service tax wherever 

applicable): 

As auditors - statutory audit 

 
 
 

 
2.20 

 
 
 

 
2.20 

Total 519.58 431.58 

 

26 Earning Per Share 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity 
  

 shareholders (₹) -178.35 -36.45 

(b) Weighted average number of equity shares 2,32,88,000.00 2,15,18,426.23 

(c) Nominal value of each share (₹) 10.00 10.00 

Basic and diluted earnings per share -0.77 -0.17 
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27 Related Party Disclosures (Rs. in lakhs) 

(a) As per AS-18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, following are the related parties: 

S.N. Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship 

1 Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand Managing Director 

2 Vinay Shivji Dangar Director 

3 Gauravkumar Barot CEO and Director 

4 Raj Arjanbhai Ahir Director 

5 Bhanvi Choudhary Company Secretary (w.e.f february 15,2024) 

6 Rahul Labana CFO 

7 Gaurav Hasmukhray Shah Previous CFO 

8 Bhavna Marand Relative of director 

9 Concentric It Services Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary 

10 Basilroot Technologies Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary 

11 Vedity Software Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary 

12 Table Flow Tech Private Limited Subsidiary 

13 Codup Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary 

14 Tridhya Silwatech Information Technology Co. L.L.C Director is a member of the Company 

15 Tridhya Tech Gmbh Associates Entity 

16 Momatos Retail Private Limited Ramesh Marand and Vinay Dangar is Director 

17 Tridhya Legal Consultant LLP Ramesh Marand is Designated Partner 

 
18 

 
Inexture Solutions LLP 

 
Ramesh Marand and Vinay Dangar are Designated Partners 

 
19 

 
Inexture Solutions Limited 

 
Ramesh Marand and Vinay Dangar are Directors & Shareholders 

 
20 

Tridhya Innovation LLP Ramesh Marand, Vinay Dangar and Raj arjanbhai ahir are Designated 

Partners 

21 Tridhya Enterprise LLP Ramesh Marand and Raj Arjanbhai Ahir are Designated Partners 

22 Shaligram Infotech LLP Ramesh Marand is Designated Partner 

23 Ashapura Chinaclay Co LLP Vinay Dangar is Designated Partner 

24 Tridhya Infra LLP Director is a partner in the firm 

25 Tana IT Services Pvt Ltd Common directors 

26 Simranjeet Kaur Independent Director 

27 Hetal Somani Independent Director 

28 Ashutosh Chhawchharia Independent Director 

29 Growthsquare Solutions Pvt Ltd Vinay Dangar is Director 

30 Inexture Solutions Inc Ramesh Marand is Director of its holding company 
 

(b) Details of transactions with related party during the year and balances as at the year end: (₹ in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

Remuneration   

 Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 24.00 48.00 

Salary   

Gaurav Hasmukhray Shah 0.30 1.13 

Gaurav Kumar Barot 32.40 - 

Bhanvi Choudhary 2.03 - 

Rahul Labana 8.15 - 

   

Seating Fees   

Simranjeet Kaur 0.75 - 

Hetal Somani 2.00 - 

Ashutosh Chhawchharia 1.26 - 

   

Rent Income   

Wholly owned subsidiary   

Concentric IT Services private limited 1.20 1.20 

Basilroot Technologies Private Limited 2.40 2.40 

Vedity Software private Limited 2.40 2.40 
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(Rs. in lakhs) 

  

Rent Income   

Subsidiary   

Table Flow Tech Private Limited 3.00 1.50 

Relative of Directors   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 3.00 3.00 

Ashapura Chinaclay Co LLP 0.60 0.60 

   

Expenses Reimbursement    

 Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 11.61 11.44 

Vinay Shivji Dangar 0.68 - 

Raj Ahir 0.98 - 

Director's relative   

Bhavna Marand 1.99 - 

Wholly owned subsidiary   

Concentric IT Services private limited - 0.42 

Chief Financial Officer   

Rahul Labana 1.11 - 

   

Web Development Expenses/Professional Fees/Other Expesnses   

 Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand - 36.56 

Wholly owned subsidiary   

Concentric IT Services private limited 37.51 1.00 

Basilroot Technologies Private Limited - 7.00 

Vedity Software private Limited - 1.00 

Subsidiary   

Table Flow Tech Private Limited 23.88 20.50 

CodUp Technologies Private Limited 1.31 1.27 

Relative of Directors   

Tridhya Legal Consultant - 1.61 

Inexture Solutions LLP - 8.80 

Inexture Solutions Limited 34.42 - 

Shaligram Infotech LLP 14.42 5.11 

Tana IT Services Pvt Ltd 14.40 - 

Tridhya Innovation LLP - - 

Company Secretary   

Bhanvi Choudhary - 1.13 

   

Sale of Services   

Wholly owned subsidiary   

Concentric IT Services private limited - 84.56 

Relative of Directors   

Momatos Retail Private Limited - 1.25 

Tridhya Innovation LLP 7.43 0.03 

Shaligram Infotech LLP - 106.97 

Tridhya Silwatech Information Technology Co. L.L.C 96.24 - 

Inxeture Solutions Inc 200.70  

Associates   

Tridhya Tech GMBH - 20.20 

Unsecured Loan Payment   

Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 889.10 1,178.79 

Wholly owned subsidiary   

Vedity Software private Limited - 16.20 
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(Rs. in lakhs) 

  

Interest Expense on Loan   

Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 161.02 - 

   

Interest Income on Loan   

Subsidiary   

CodUp Technologies Private Limited 9.16 - 

Tableflow Tech Private Limited 8.13 - 

Relative of Directors   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 45.01 - 

Growthsquare Solutions Pvt Ltd 198.29 - 

   

Unsecured Loan Taken   

Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 3,633.15 1,683.79 

Wholly owned subsidiary   

Vedity Software private Limited - 16.20 

   

Unsecured Loan & Advances Given   

Subsidiary   

CodUp Technologies Private Limited 10.00 104.52 

Tableflow Tech Private Limited 90.34 64.92 

Relative of Directors   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 2,303.58 1,522.20 

   

Unsecured Loan & Advances Received   

Subsidiary   

CodUp Technologies Private Limited 0.92 - 

Tableflow Tech Private Limited 4.39 - 

Relative of Directors   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 1,988.03 1,362.35 

 
Outstanding Balances 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

Remuneration Payable   

 Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 19.97 35.13 

Salary Payable   

Gaurav Kumar Barot 3.93 - 

Bhanvi Choudhary 0.12 - 

Rahul Labana 0.70 - 

   

Expenses Payable   

 Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 11.61 0.87 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81



Tridhya Tech Limited 

CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

  

Trade Payables   

Wholly owned subsidiary   

Concentric IT Services private limited 11.71 1.00 

Basilroot Technologies Private Limited - 7.00 

Vedity Software private Limited - 1.00 

Subsidiary   

Table Flow Tech Private Limited 2.27 - 

Relative of Directors   

Tridhya Legal Consultant  1.44 

Shaligram Infotech LLP 15.58 - 

Tana IT Services Pvt Ltd 7.20 - 

   

Trade Receivables   

Wholly owned subsidiary   

Concentric IT Services private limited 0.24 - 

Basilroot Technologies Private Limited 0.43 - 

Associates   

Tridhya Tech GMBH - 0.35 

Relative of Directors   

Tridhya Silwatech Information Technology Co. L.L.C 70.03 - 

Tridhya Innovation LLP 8.02 - 

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 0.54 - 

Momatos Retail Private Limited 0.13 - 

Inxeture Solutions Inc 15.71 - 

   

Interest Payable   

Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 161.02 - 

   

Interest Receivable   

Subsidiary   

Tableflow Tech Private Limited 8.13 - 

CodUp Technologies Private Limited 9.16 - 

Relative of Directors   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 45.01 - 

   

Long Term Borrowing   

Director   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 3,496.35 752.30 

Relative of Directors   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 481.51 165.96 

   

Loans and Advances   

Subsidiary   

Tableflow Tech Private Limited 152.89 66.94 

CodUp Technologies Private Limited 116.35 107.27 
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28 Amount Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Below are Micro and Small Scale Business Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more then 45 days as at March 

31st 2025. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro , Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined 

to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.  

 
S. N. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current 

1 Principal amount due to suppliers registered 

under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as 

at year end. 

- 32.10 - - 

2 Interest due to suppliers registered under the 

MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year 

- - - - 

3 Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered 

under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day 

during the year. 

- - - - 

4 Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of 

MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the 

MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during 

the year. 

- - - - 

5 Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to 

suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 

beyond the appointed day during the year. 

- - - - 

6 Interest due and payable towards suppliers 

registered under MSMED Act, for payments 

already made. 

- - - - 

7 Further interest remaining due and payable for 

earlier years. 

- - - - 

 
29 Gratuity Plan 

The following table set out the status of Gratuity Plan as required by AS -15. 

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balance of Present Value of defined benefits: 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 115.34 33.51 

Acquisition Adjustment - - 

Transfer in/(out) obligation -24.40 - 

Interest Cost 6.76 2.36 

Past Service Cost (Vested Employees) - - 

Past Service Cost (Un-vested Employees) - - 

Current Service Cost 25.71 15.37 

Curtailment Cos - - 

Settlement Cost - - 

Benefits Paid -1.38 -1.45 

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on the Obligation -35.09 65.55 

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 86.94 115.34 

Assumptions   

Interest Rate (p.a.) 6.55% 7.15% 

Salary Growth Rate (p.a.) 10.00% 10.00% 

 

 
30 The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of Information Technology Services. This in the context of Accounting Standard (AS 17) 

“Segment Reporting”, notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, constitutes one single primary segment. The Company 

does not have a secondary segment. Accordingly, disclosures required under AS 17 are not applicable. 
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Additional Regulatory Information as per Para Y of Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013: 

i. The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 

executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company. 

ii. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment. 

iii. The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under 

Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are: 

(a) repayable on demand or 

(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment 

 
iv. During the period ended March 31, 2025 the Company has intangible assets under development as follows: 

 
Particulars 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Less than 1 

year 

1-2 years 2-3 years  
More than 3 years 

 
Total 

Projects in progress 0.72 6.04 - - 6.76 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - - 

 
VI. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder. 

VII. The Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and quarterly returns or statements of 

current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts. 

 
VIII. The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

IX. The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 

Companies Act, 1956 

X. There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

XI. The company does not have any investments and hence, compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the 

Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable. 

XII. Key Ratios: 

 
Sr No 

 
Ratios 

 
2024-25 

 
2023-24 

Differences 2024- 

25 V/S 2023-24 

 
Observations (If variance is more than 25%) 

 

 
1 

 

 
Current Ratio 

 

 
0.88 

 

 
2.41 

 

 
-63.40% 

The current ratio declined in FY 2024-25 due to a 

significant increase in current liabilities, which 

outpaced the growth in current assets, resulting in 

reduced short-term liquidity. 

 

 
2 

 

 
Debt- Equity Ratio 

 

 
2.07 

 

 
0.55 

 

 
278.26% 

The debt-equity ratio increased in FY 2024-25 

primarily due to a significant rise in total debt, while 

the shareholder’s fund remained relatively stable. 

The increase in borrowings without a corresponding 

increase in equity led to a higher ratio. 

 
3 

 
Return on Equity Ratio 

 
-0.04 

 
-0.01 

 
257.22% 

 
The return on equity ratio decreases due to lower 

profitability of the company in the current year. 

4 Inventory Turnover Ratio NA 

 
5 

 
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 

 
3.31 

 
4.57 

 
-28% 

The trade receivable ratio decreses due to company 

receives money earlier than Previous Year 

 

 
6 

 

 
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 

 

 
11.57 

 

 
6.30 

 

 
84% 

The Trade Payable Turnover Ratio has increased 

during the current year primarily due to a significant 

rise in credit purchases coupled with a marginal 

decrease in average trade payables. 

 

 
7 

 

 
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 

 

 
-3.59 

 

 
3.37 

 

 
206.31% 

The net capital turnover ratio decreased in FY 2024- 

25 due to a shift from positive to negative working 

capital. Despite stable sales, the adverse change in 

working capital base impacted the efficiency of 

capital utilization. 
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Sr No 

 
Ratios 

 
2024-25 

 
2023-24 

Differences 2024- 

25 V/S 2023-24 

 
Observations (If variance is more than 25%) 

 
8 

 
Net Profit Ratio 

 
-0.05 

 
-0.01 

 
380.12% 

The net profit ratio decreases due to the higher salary 

cost and finance cost in comparison with previous 

year. 

 
9 

 
Return on capital Employed 

 
0.03 

 
0.04 

 
-32.24% 

 

The return on capital employed decreased due to 

profitabilty of company reduces. 

10 Return on Investment 0.0002 0.00 100.00% In current year, there is income on interest on FD. 

 
XIII. The Company does not have any scheme of arrangements which has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 

of the Companies Act, 2013. 

XIV. A. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)  

by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,  whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

B. No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

 
31 The company has maintained an edit log (audit trail) in its accounting software for all transactions during the financial year ended march 31, 2025, in 

compliance with Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The audit trail feature was enabled throughout the year, capturing all changes 

with date, time, and user details, and was not tampered with or disabled. 

 
32 Subsequent Events 

The company has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date till the date at which the financial statements were available to be issued' 

and determined that there are no material items to disclose other than those disclosed above. 

 
33 Previous year’s figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the current year. 

 
34 Party accounts, in debit/credit, are subject to confirmation, reconciliation and consequential adjustments thereof, if any. 

For M A A K & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

(FRN – 135024W) 
 
 

                      SD/- 
CA Marmik Shah 

Partner 

(MRN - 133926) 
 
 
 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: May 21, 2025 

UDIN: 25139533BMLCYC5275 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Tridhya Tech Limited 

 
 
 
 

                              SD/-                                                                                     SD/- 
Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand Vinay Shivji Dangar 

(Managing Director) (Director) 

DIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051 
 
 

                       SD/-                                                                                        SD/- 
Rahul Labana Bhanvi Choudhary 

(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Tridhya Tech Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Tridhya Tech Limited (”theParent”/“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent/ Holding Company and its subsidiariestogether referred to as “the Group”), which also includes the Group’s share of profit/loss in its associates,which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated Statement ofProfit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary ofsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaidConsolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) inthe manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribedunder section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended(“Accounting Standards”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairsof the Group as at March 31, 2025, its profit/loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards onAuditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards arefurther described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statementssection of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by theInstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant toour audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules madethereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirementsand the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriateto provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in ouraudit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in thecontext of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,and we do not provide a separate opinion on thesematters. We have determined that there are no key AuditMatters to be communicated in our report.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Actwith respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view ofthe financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with the Accounting Standardsand other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective management of the companiesincluded in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance withthe provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting fraudsand other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments andestimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
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internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of theaccounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a trueand fair view and are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been usedfor the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent/Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companiesincluded in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accountingunless the management either intends to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but todo so.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeingthe financial reporting process of the Group.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements asa whole are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s reportthat includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that anaudit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of theseConsolidated Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professionalskepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Holding Company’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such business
activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually orin aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of theConsolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitativefactors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluatethe effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scopeand timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controlthat we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevantethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and othermatters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relatedsafeguards.Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:
A. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Holding Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.
C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this

Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
D. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act.
E. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

F. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

G. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the period is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

H. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
b) The group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any

material foreseeable losses.
c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund by the group.
d)
i. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Holding Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall:
 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Holding Company.
 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii.The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company
shall:
 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or
 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

iii.Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under subclause (d) (i) and
(d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

ii. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company and its subsidiaries has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did
not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with

e) The group has not paid any dividend during the year and hence, compliance with Section 123 of the Act is
not applicable.
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2. As required with reference to the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), we give in the “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters
specified to the extent applicable.

3. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration paid
during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, wherever applicable, to its
directors is in accordancewith the provision of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Remuneration
paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies is not in excess of the limits
laid down under section 197 of the Act.

4. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be
included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on
the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For MAAK & AssociatesChartered Accountants(Firm’s Registration No. – 135024W)

Marmik Shah(Partner)(M. No. 133926)Place: Ahmedabad UDIN: 25139533BMLCYD1232Date: May 21, 2025

SD/-
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of ourreport of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- section 3 ofSection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tridhya Tech Limited (FormerlyKnown As “Tridhya Tech Private Limited”) (“the Parent”/ “the Holding Company”) as of March 31, 2025 inconjunction with our audit of the special purpose consolidated consolidated financial statements of theCompany for the period ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Holding Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financialcontrols based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group consideringthe essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal FinancialControls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Theseresponsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controlsthat were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, includingadherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation ofreliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls over financialreporting of the Group and its joint operations companies incorporated in India (retain as applicable) basedon our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal FinancialControls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to theextent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note requirethat we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranceabout whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintainedand if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internalfinancial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internalfinancial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controlsover financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating thedesign and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selecteddepend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of thespecial purpose consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ouraudit opinion on The Holding Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A holding company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to providereasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated
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financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactionsand dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arerecorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance withgenerally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being madeonly in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) providereasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, ordisposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the special purpose consolidatedfinancial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including thepossibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to erroror fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controlsover financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control overfinancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ofcompliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the group has,in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and suchinternal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based onthe criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Holding Companyconsidering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For MAAK & AssociatesChartered Accountants(Firm’s Registration No. – 135024W)

Marmik Shah(Partner)(M. No. 133926)Place: Ahmedabad UDIN: 25139533BMLCYD1232Date: May 21, 2025

sd/-
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Tridhya Tech Limited 
CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 

. (₹ in Lakhs) 

Particulars Notes 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 Shareholders’ Funds 

(a) Share Capital 

(b) Reserve and Surplus 

(c) Minority Interest 

 
2 Non-current Liabilities 

(a) Long-Term Borrowings 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets) (Net) 

(c) Long-term Provisions 

(d) Other Long Term Liabilities 

 
3 Current Liabilities 

(a) Short-Term Borrowings 

(b) Trade Payables 

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 

than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

(c) Other Current Liabilities 

(d) Short Term Provisions 

 

 
2 

 

 
2,328.80 

 

 
2,328.80 

3 1,964.59 2,341.26 

 22.64 22.09 

 
4 

 
2,020.50 

 
2,895.35 

5 - 0.13 

6 114.19 116.33 

7 - 12.00 

 
8 

 
7,996.38 

 
945.43 

9   

 
33.88 - 

 
185.79 77.72 

10 332.24 331.62 

11 37.90 67.99 

Total  15,036.91 9,138.72 

II. ASSETS 

1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible 

Assets 

(i) Tangible Assets 

(ii) Intangible assets 

(iii) Intangible assets under Development 

(iv) Capital Work-In-Progress 

(v) Goodwill on Consolidation 

(b) Non-Current Investments 

(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

(d) Long-Term Loans And Advances 

(e) Other Non-Current Assets 

 
2 Current Assets 

(a) Current Investment 

(b) Trade Receivables 

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(d) Short-Term Loans And Advances 

(e) Other Current Assets 

 
 
 

 
12 

  

 1,642.40 1,526.08 

 886.78 849.42 

 184.83 81.47 

 6.76 6.04 

 1,174.44 1,174.44 

13 664.64 664.64 

5 3.79 - 

14 2,687.76 2,047.77 

15 98.66 111.45 

 
16 

 
10.33 

 
65.26 

17 808.95 1,407.74 

18 49.33 145.39 

19 6,418.25 841.14 

20 399.99 217.88 

Total  15,036.91 9,138.72 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

 

For M A A K & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants Tridhya Tech Limited 

(FRN – 135024W) 

  
 SD/- SD/- SD/- 

CA Marmik Shah Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand Vinay Shivji Dangar 

Partner (Managing Director) (Director) 

(MRN - 133926) DIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051 
 
 

 SD/- SD/- 
Place: Ahmedabad Rahul Labana Bhanvi Choudhary 

Date: May 21, 2025 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 

UDIN: 25139533BMLCYD1232
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Tridhya Tech Limited 
CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31st March, 2025 

 
(₹ in Lakhs Except for EPS) 

Sr 

No. 

 
Particulars 

 Year Ended 

Notes 
31.03.2025 

(Audited) 

31.03.2024 

(Audited) 

 
1 

 
Revenue from Operations 

Other Income 

Total Revenue(1+2) 

 
Expenses 
 
(a) Purchases & Operating Expenses 

(b) Changes in Inventories of Stock in Trade 

(c) Employee Benefit Expenses 

(d) Finance Cost 

(e) Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 

(f) Other Expenses 

 
Total Expenses 

 
Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional and Extra ordinary items 

and Tax (3-4) 

Exceptional Items 

Profit / (Loss) before Extra ordinary items and Tax (5-6) 

 
Extra ordinary items 

Net Profit / (Loss) from Ordinary Activities before Tax(7-8) 

Tax Expense 

(a) Current Tax 

(b) Deferred Tax 

(c) Short provision of income tax of earlier years 

Profit/(Loss) For the Period before minority interest (9-10) 

Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associates 

Profit/(Loss) of Minority Interest 

Profit/(Loss) For the Period (11-12-13) 

Paid up Equity Share Capital (F. V) 

Earnings per Share 

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share 

 
21 

 
3,595.10 

 
3,527.76 

2 22 666.10 368.79 

3  4,261.20 3,896.55 

4 
   

 
23 1,251.31 575.05 

  - 0.34 
 24 1,924.56 2,196.09 
 25 620.89 378.46 
 12 323.63 219.99 

 26 517.87 522.78 

  4,638.25 3,892.71 

5 
   

  -377.05 3.84 

6   - 

7    

  -377.05 3.84 

8  - - 

9  -377.05 3.84 

10    

  3.01 53.22 
  -3.92 -2.87 

  - 2.67 

11  -376.14 -49.19 

12  - - 

13  -18.77 - 

14  -357.37 -49.19 

15  2,328.80 2,151.80 

16    

 27 -1.53 -0.21 

 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

 
For M A A K & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants Tridhya Tech Limited 
(FRN – 135024W) 

 

 SD/- SD/- SD/- 

CA Marmik Shah Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand   Vinay Shivji Dangar 

Partner (Managing Director) (Director) 
(MRN - 133926) DIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051 

 
 

 SD/- SD/- 
Place: Ahmedabad Rahul Labana Bhanvi Choudhary 

Date: May 21, 2025 (Chief Financial Officer) 

UDIN: 25139533BMLCYD1232 

(Company Secretary) 
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Tridhya Tech Limited 

CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Consolidated Audited Cashflow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

(₹ in Lakhs) 

 
S.N. 

 
Particulars 

For the year ended on 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended on 

31st March, 2024 

A 

 
Add 

Add 

Add 

Add 

Add 

Less: 

Less: 

Less: 

Add: 

Less: 

Cash Flow from the Operating Activities 

Net Profit Before Tax 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Finance Costs 

Profit/(Loss) on sale of fixed assets 

Provision for Gratuity 

Provision for Expenses 

Gain on Translation of Foreign Exchange 

Sundry Balances Written off 

Discount Received 

Loss on Sale of Investment 

Interest Income 

 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 

Changes in Working Capital 

Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Provisions 

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities 

Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 

Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Non-Current Assets 

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 

(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances 

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets 

Cash Generated from Operations 

Less - Net Tax Paid 

Net Cash Flow Generated from / (Used in) Operating 

Activities (A) 

 

 
323.63 

620.89 

-35.89 

28.14 

31.60 

-17.28 

-1.74 

-0.30 

51.47 

-518.29 

 
-377.05 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
482.22 

 

 
219.99 

378.45 

-19.28 

83.28 

15.71 

5.23 

- 
 

 
-200.40 

 
3.84 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
482.99 482.22 482.99 

 

 
-30.28 

144.00 

0.62 

-12.00 

7,050.95 

-61.69 

12.79 

616.07 

-5,577.11 

-182.11 

105.17  

 
94.82 

-31.22 

-102.41 

-12.00 

269.94 

-50.95 

-27.56 

-758.08 

-297.15 

-126.09 

486.83 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1,961.24 

3.01 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
-1,040.70 

- 

1,961.24 -1,040.70 

  

 
2,063.40 

 
-553.87 

 
B 

 
Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

Inflows 

Interest Income Received on Others 

Outflows 

 
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill on Consolidation 

Sale of Current Investments 

Purchase of Investments 

 
Net Cash Flow Generated from / (Used in) Investing Activities 

(B) 

 
 

 
518.29 

 

 
-545.50 

-0.00 

3.47 

-0.00 

 
 

 
200.40 

 

 
-1,046.95 

-319.17 

 
-165.26 

-23.74 -1,330.98 

 
C 

 
Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

Proceeds from Equity Share Capital Issued 

Decrease in Borrowings 

Loans and Advance to Other companies 

Finance Cost of Interest & Other 

 

 
- 

-874.84 

-639.99 

-620.89 

 

 
2,620.32 

-264.89 

- 

-378.45 

 Net Cash Flow Generated from / (Used in) Financing 

Activities (C) 

  
-2,135.72 

  
1,976.98 

  
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash & Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 

 
-96.06 

145.39 

 
92.14 

53.25 

Cash & Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)  49.33  145.39 

  
Cash and Cash Equivalents consists of :- 

    

(Refer Note No. 17)   

(i) Cash-in-hand 9.88 0.97 

(ii) Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 39.45 144.42 

Total  49.33  145.39 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

 
For M A A K & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants Tridhya Tech Limited 

(FRN – 135024W) 

 SD/- SD/- SD/- 
CA Marmik Shah 

Partner 

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 

(Managing Director) 

Vinay Shivji Dangar 

(Director) 

(MRN - 133926) DIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051 

 
Place: Ahmedabad 

SD/- SD/- 

Date: May 21, 2025 Rahul Labana Bhanvi Choudhary 

UDIN: 25139533BMLCYD1232 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 
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Tridhya Tech Limited 

CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended as on 31st March, 2025 

 

 
1.1  Corporate Information 

Tridhya Tech Limited is a company incorporated on February 2, 2018 as “Tridhya Tech Private Limited”. 

The Corporate identification Number of the company is U72900GJ2018PLC100733. 

The company has been converted from Private Company to Public Company on October 25, 2022. 

The company is engaged in providing IT Consultancy Services 

The Company has 3 subsidiaries - Contcentric IT Services Private Limited, Vedity Software Private Limited, Basilroot 

Technologies Private Limited and one associate - Tridhya Tech GmBH. 

 
2 Significant Accounting Policies 

2.01 Basis Of Accounting And Preparation Of Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act"), as applicable. The 

financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies 

adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous year. 

 

 
The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-by-line basis by 

adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra- 

group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised profits or losses as per Accounting Standard 21 – 

“Consolidated Financial Statements” notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. 

Minority Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance 

Sheet separately from liabilities and equity of the Company’s shareholders. 

Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of: 

a) The amount of equity attributable to minority at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is made; and 

b) The minority share of movements in equity since the date the parent subsidiary relationship came into existence. 

Minority’s share of net profit for the year of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and adjusted against the Profit After 

Tax of the Group. 

In addition to the above, the net profit/(loss) of associate company attributable to share of holding company is 

credited/debited under Statement of Profit or Loss and added/deducted from cost of investment in associate company 

as per Accounting Standard 23 - "Accounting for Investments in. Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements" 

using Cost to Equity Method. 

The Financial Statement of associate company are unaudited as not mandatorily required to be audited by the relevant 

statute as applicable to the associate company for the period. Hence, proforma financial statements as approved by the 

management has been considered for the purporse of giving effect in Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 
 

Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent and in consonance with generally accepted 

accounting principles in India. 

 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle 

and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time 

between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 

determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current – non-current classification of assets and 

liabilities. 

 

 
2.02 Use Of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to make 

estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) 

and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in 

preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates 

and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are 

known / materialise. 
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Tridhya Tech Limited 

CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended as on 31st March, 2025 

 

 
2.03 Property, Plant & Equipment 

All Fixed Assets are recorded at cost including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses incurred in relation 

to their acquisition and bringing the asset to its intended use. 

 
2.04 Depreciation / Amortisation 

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives 

estimated by the management, or those prescribed under the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Individual assets 

cost of which doesn’t exceed Rs. 5,000/- each are depreciated in full in the year of purchase. Intangible assets 

including internally developed intangible assets are amortised over the year for which the company expects the 

benefits to accrue. Intangible Asset - Software is amortised with a useful life of 3 years. 

 
2.05 Impairment Of Assets 

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. Recoverable amount is the 

higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash 

flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Net selling 

price is the amount obtainable from sale of the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing 

parties, less the costs of disposal. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in 

which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if 

there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable value. 

2.06 Investments 

Non-current investments are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary diminution in value, determined on the 

specific identification basis. 

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is carried out 

separately in respect of each investment. 

Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of 

investment, determined individually for each investment. 

2.07 Foreign Currency Transaltions 

Income and expense in foreign currencies are converted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation at the balance sheet 

date is recognized in Profit & Loss Account in the year in which it arises. 

 
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities other than net investments in non-integral foreign operations are 

translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses are recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss. Exchange difference arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of an 

enterprise’s net investments in a non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in a foreign currency translation 

reserve. 

 
Premium or discount on foreign exchange forward, options and futures contracts are amortised and recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss over the period of the contract. Foreign exchange forward, options and future contracts 

outstanding at the balance sheet date, other than designated cash flow hedges, are stated at fair values and any gains or 

losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
2.08 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the 

cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended 

use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue. 

 

 
2.09 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets 

Provision involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement is recognized when there is a present obligation 

as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not 

recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial 

statements. 
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Tridhya Tech Limited 

CIN: L72900GJ2018PLC100733 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended as on 31st March, 2025 

 

 
2.10 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from services is recognized based on time and material and billed to the clients as per the terms of the 

contract. In the case of fixed price contracts, revenue is recognized on periodical basis based on units executed and 

delivered. Income is exclusive of taxes , wherever applicable. 

 
Revenue from software development / services on a time-and-material basis is recognised based on software 

developed / services provided and billed on clients as per the terms of specific contracts and revenue in excess of 

billing on related services is recognised and classified as unbilled revenue. 

 
2.11 Other Income 

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 

applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head "other income" in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

 
2.12 Taxes On Income 

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-22) – “Accounting for taxes on income”, 

notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2014. Income tax comprises of both current and deferred tax. 

Current tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the 

provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 
The tax effect of the timing differences that result between taxable income and accounting income and are capable of 

reversal in one or more subsequent periods are recorded as a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability. They are 

measured using substantially enacted tax rates and tax regulations as of the Balance Sheet date. 

 
Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, 

are recognized, only if there is virtual certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax 

assets on account of other timing differences are recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its 

realization. 

 

 
2.13 Cash And Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises Cash-in-hand, Current Accounts, Fixed Deposits with banks. Cash equivalents 

are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of 

changes in value. 

 
2.14 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of 

extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the year. Diluted 

earning per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary 

items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) 

relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares which could have 

been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 
2.15 Employee Benefits 

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme and is accrued based on actuarial valuations at the balance sheet date, carried out 

by an independent actuary. The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan 

covering eligible employees. The plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while 

in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each 

completed year of service without any monetary limit. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. 

Provision for gratuity has been made in the books as per actuarial valuation done as at the end of the year. 

 
Contributions payable to the recognised provident fund, which is a defined contribution scheme, are charged to the 

statement of profit and loss. 
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2.16 Segment Reporting 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
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Place: Ahmedabad 

 
 
 

SD/- 
Rahul Labana 
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(Rs. In lakhs) 

2 Share Capital 
As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

No. of Shares Rs. No. of Shares Rs. 

(a) Authorized Share Capital 

Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each 

Preference Shares of ₹ 10/- each 

 
2,39,00,000 

1,00,000 

 
2,390.00 

10.00 

 
2,39,00,000 

1,00,000 

 
2,390.00 

10.00 

  2,40,00,000 2,400.00 2,40,00,000 2,400.00 

(b) Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Share Capital 

Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each fully paid-up 
 

2,32,88,000 
 

2,328.80 
 

2,32,88,000 
 

2,328.80 

Total 2,32,88,000 2,328.80 2,32,88,000 2,328.80 

 
Note: 

During the financial year and preceding five financial years, the Company has: 

(i) allotted fully paid-up equity shares by way of intial public offer; 

(ii) allotted fully paid-up equity shares by way of bonus shares; 

(iii) Consolidated Shares from Rs. 5/- to Rs. 10/- each. 

During the financial year and preceding five financial years, the Company has not: 

(i) allotted any equity shares pursuant to any contract without payment being received in cash; 

(ii) brought back any equity shares 

 
A. Reconciliation of the Shares Outstanding at the Beginning and at the End of the Reporting Period: 

 
Particulars 

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 

 Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each 

Opening Share Capital 

Add Equity shares issued during the year 

Total 

Consolidation of shares of Rs. 5 to Rs. 10 each 

Add Right / Bonus Shares Issued 

Add Equity Shares Issued 

Less: Buy back of Shares 

Less: Reduction in Capital 

 
2,32,88,000.00 

- 

 
2,328.80 

- 

 
1,70,00,000 

- 

 
1,700.00 

- 

2,32,88,000.00 2,328.80 1,70,00,000 1,700.00 

 
- 

- 

- 

- 

 
- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

62,88,000 

- 

- 

- 

- 

628.80 

- 

- 

Closing Share capital 2,32,88,000 2,328.80 2,32,88,000 2,328.80 

 
Note: 

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to shares: 

(i) 

 
(ii) 

 
(iii)  

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one 

vote per share held and carry a right to dividend. 

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring 

Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. 

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company 

after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

B. Particulars of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Share Capital: 

Name of Shareholder As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

 
No. of Shares 

% of Total 

shares 

 
No. of Shares 

% of Total 

shares 

 Equity Shareholders     

(a) Vinay Shivji Dangar 27,48,800.00 11.80% 59,05,200 25.00% 

(b) Tridhya Consultancy LLP 20,86,200.00 8.96% 20,86,200 9.00% 

(c) Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 57,55,600.00 24.71% 56,77,600 24.00% 

(d) Maa Informatics LLP 17,30,000.00 7.43% 24,14,000 10.00% 

(e) Taraash Pharma LLP 16,68,000.00 7.16% - 0.00% 

(f) Tridhya Trade Stocks LLP 36,03,400.00 #DIV/0! - 0.00% 
      

Total 1,75,92,000.00 #DIV/0! 1,60,83,000 68.00% 
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C. Shareholding of promoters as at 31st March, 2025 

Shareholding of promoters as at 31st March, 2024 

Notes Related to Share Capital 

 

shall be payable except out of profits of the Company arrived at in the manner provided for in Section 123 of

 

 

 

 
Sr. No. Name of Promotor No. of shares % of Total shares % change during the year 

1 Vinay Vijay Dangar 27,48,800 11.80% 13.20% 

2 Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 57,55,600 24.71% -0.71% 

Total 85,04,400 36.52% 12.48% 

 
Sr. No. Name of Promotor No. of shares % of Total shares % change during the year 

1 Vinay Vijay Dangar 59,05,200 25.00% 0% 

2 Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 56,77,600 24.00% 0% 

Total 1,15,82,800 49.00% 0% 
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(₹ in Lakhs) 

 
3 

 
Reserve and Surplus 

As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

  
Securities Premium 

  

Opening Balance 2,012.16 - 

Add: Received on issue of shares - 2,012.16 

Less: Utilised towards issue of bonus shares - - 

Closing Balance 2,012.16 2,012.16 

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss   

Balance as Per Last Financial Statements 329.10 367.99 

Add: Profit / (Loss) for the Year -376.12 -38.89 

Less: Utilised towards issue of bonus shares - - 

Less: Minority interest 0.55  

Balance of Statement of Profit & Loss -47.57 329.10 
   

Total 1,964.59 2,341.26 

 

4 Long-Term Borrowings 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Secured   

 Term Loan - - 
 -Banks 1,421.32 1,391.45 
 -Others 211.54 163.43 
   - 

(b) Unsecured  - 
 Term Loan - - 
 -Banks. 1.22 45.92 
 -Others. 144.43 374.78 
 -Related Party. 241.98 919.77 

Total 2,020.50 2,895.35 

 
Nature of Security Terms of Repayment 

Loan of ₹ 500 Lakhs from Kotak is secured by mortgage of 

office premises. 

Loan is repayable in 120 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 250 Lakhs from Kotak is secured by mortgage of 

office premises. 

Loan is repayable in 120 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 56.16 Lakhs from Yes Bank is secured by mortgage 

of property 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 35 Lakhs from HDFC Bank is unsecured. Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 202.50 Lakhs from Ratnaafin Capital Private 

Limited is secured by mortgage of residential properties 

owned by the directors (Partly Disbursed till Dec'22) 

Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Instalments 

Loan of ₹ 53.9 Lakhs from HDFC Bank is Secured against 

Audi Q5 Car 

Loan is repayable in 84 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 29 Lakhs from Bank of India is Secured against 

Innova Car 

Loan is repayable in 84 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 35 Lakhs from Aditya Birla Capital is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 30 Lakhs from ASHV is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 
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Nature of Security Terms of Repayment 

Loan of ₹ 29 Lakhs from Axis Bank Ltd. is unsecured Loan is paid during the financial year 

Loan of ₹ 20.07 Lakhs from Chola is unsecured Loan is repayable in 37 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 45.9 Lakhs from Credit Saison India is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50 Lakhs from Deutsche Bank is unsecured Loan is repayable in 24 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 30.15 Lakhs from Hero Fincorp is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 35 Lakhs from Indusland Bank Ltd. is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 25 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 13 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 35 Lakhs from L&T Finance is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 40 Lakhs from Protium Finance is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 30 Lakhs from Tata is unsecured Loan is repayable in 18 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 25.1 Lakhs from UGRO Capital is unsecured Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 30.6 Lakhs from Unity Small Finance Bank Ltd. is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50 Lakhs from Infibeam Projects Management Pvt. 

Ltd. is unsecured 

Loan is paid during the financial year 

Loan of ₹ 50 Lakhs from ODIGMA Consultancy Solutions Pvt. 

Ltd. is unsecured 

Loan is paid during the financial year 

Loan of ₹ 270 Lakhs from Axis Bank is Secured against 

Mercedese 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 21.90 Lakhs from SBI Bank is Secured against 

Hector Loan 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 70.00 Lakhs from Axis Bank is secured against Car Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 270.00 Lakhs from Bank of India is secured against 

property 

Loan is repayable in 120 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 600.00 Lakhs from Chotu Solutions Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 3,000.00 Lakhs from Infibeam Avenues Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable within 6 months from the date 

of agreement 

Loan of ₹ 28.87 Lakhs from Bajaj Finance Ltd is unsecured Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50.00 Lakhs from Clix Capital Services Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 28.65 Lakhs from Fedbank Financail Services Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 12 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 17.93 Lakhs from Girnar Software Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is paid during the financial year 

Loan of ₹ 50.00 Lakhs from Kisetsu Saison Finance (India) 

Private Limited is unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 
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Nature of Security Terms of Repayment 

Loan of ₹ 30.00 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 13 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50.00 Lakhs from NeoGrowth Credit Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 19 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 100.00 Lakhs from Ratnafin Capital Pvt Ltd is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 51.00 Lakhs from Unity Small Finance Bank is 

unsecured 

Loan is repayable in 36 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

Loan of ₹ 50.00 Lakhs from Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd is 

secured against car 

Loan is repayable in 60 Equated Monthly 

Installments 

 

5 Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets) (Net) 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) arising on account of   

-Due to difference in WDV as per Companies Act, 2013 and Income 

Tax Act, 1961 

Adjustment of Deffered Tax Asset 

-Due to the disallowances of expenses under Income Tax Act 

-3.79 

- 

- 

7.46 

-7.08 

-0.25 

Total -3.79 0.13 

 

6 Long-term Provisions 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Provision for Employee Benefits 

Provision for Gratuity 

 

 
114.19 

 

 
116.33 

Total 114.19 116.33 

 

7 Other Long Term Liabilities 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Security Deposits 

 
- 

 
12.00 

Total - 12.00 

 

8 Short-Term Borrowings 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

(a) Secured   

 Demand Overdraft from Banks 230.93 252.38 
 Balance in Current Account -  

 Overdraft from Banks 10.30  

 From Banks 15.88  

 From NBFC 41.77  

(b) Unsecured Term Loan 
  

 Term Loan from Others   

 -Banks. 25.64  

 -Others. 3,677.14 226.3 
 -Related Party. 3,615.73  

 Current Maturities of Long-term Debt 378.99 466.75 

Total 7,996.38 945.43 

Note: Demand Overdraft from Yes Bank is secured against mortgage of office premises. 
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9 Trade Payables 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

(a) 

 

(b) 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 

 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises. 

 

33.88 

 

185.79 

 

 

 

 

77.72 

Total 219.68 77.72 

 

Notes: 

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2025 

Sr. No. Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods Total 

< 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years > 3 Years 

1 MSME 34 - - - 33.88 

2 Other than MSME 186 - - - 185.79 

3 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - 

4 than MSME - - - - - 

Total 219.68 - - - 219.68 

Unbilled Dues  - 

Total Trade Payables  219.68 

 
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024 

Sr. No. Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods Total 

< 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years > 3 Years 

1 MSME - - - - - 

2 Other than MSME 77.72 - - - 77.72 

3 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - 

4 than MSME - - - - - 

Total 77.72 - -  77.72 

Unbilled Dues  - 

Total Trade Payables  77.72 

 

10 Other Current Liabilities 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Advance from Customers 

Payable towards purchase of equity shares 

Other payables 

Statutory Dues Payable 

(i) Statutory Liabilities (includes Provident Fund, Profession Tax, 

Tax Deducted at Source and Goods and Service Tax) 

Expenses Payable 

Employees Dues 

 
3.07 

 
- 

(b) 94.38 - 

(c) 27.75 226.52 

(d)  - 

 
149.30 105.10 

(e) 12.72  

(f) 45.01  

Total 332.24 331.62 

 

11 Short Term Provisions 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Provision for employee benefits 

Gratuity (Refer Note 25) 

Provision for Expenses 

Provision for Taxation (Net of Advance tax and TDS) 

 

 
4.52 

33.38 

- 

 

 
- 

15.83 

52.16 

Total 37.90 67.99 
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12  Property, Plant and Equipment (₹ in Lakhs) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
Sr. 

No 

 

 
Particulars 

Gross Block Depreciation  Net Block 

 
As on April 

01, 2024 

Addition 

during the 

year 

Deduction 

during the 

year 

As on 

March 31, 

2025 

 
As on April 

01, 2024 

Addition 

during the 

year 

Deduction 

during the 

year 

As on 

March 31, 

2025 

Inter 

Group 

elimminat 

ion 

As on 

March 31, 

2025 

As on 

March 31, 

2024 

A Tangible Assets            

 Land 0.22 - - 0.22  - - 0.00 0.00 0.22 0.22 

1 Office Building 417.72 382.21 87.44 712.49 57.90 16.92 51.55 23.27 0.00 689.21 359.82 

2 Furniture and Fittings 572.01 0.38 - 572.39 121.13 58.64 - 179.77 0.00 392.62 450.88 

3 Computers 465.81 41.60 - 507.41 252.84 123.10 - 375.94 0.00 131.47 212.97 

4 Office Equipment 132.02 8.14 - 140.16 61.00 27.50 - 88.50 0.00 51.67 71.02 

5 Electrical Installation 20.34 2.96 - 23.30 2.59 2.47 - 5.06 0.00 18.25 17.75 

6 Motor vehicle 435.17 - - 435.17 21.75 54.42 - 76.17 0.00 359.00 413.42 

 Total 2,043.29 435.30 87.44 2,391.15 517.21 283.05 51.55 748.71  1,642.40 1,526.08 

B Intangible Assets            

1 Web Site and Software 87.50 852.10 - 939.60 3.08 40.58 - 43.66 9.16 886.78 84.42 

2 Software 765.00 - 765.00 - - - - 0.00  - 765.00 

 Total 852.50 852.10 765.00 939.60 3.08 40.58 - 43.66 9.16 886.78 849.42 

C Intangible Assets Under Development            

1 

2 

Capital work in progress 

Software 

6.04 

81.47 

0.72 

111.50 

- 

- 

6.76 

192.97 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

0.00 

0.00 
 

8.14 

6.76 

184.83 

6.04 

81.47 

 Total 87.51 112.22 - 199.73 - - - - 8.14 191.59 87.51 
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(₹ in Lakhs) 

 
13 

 
Non-Current Investments 

 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

 
As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

(Unquoted, Non-Trade, At Cost) 

Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary Company 

(i) '37150 equity shares of 'Nextenders (India ) Private Limited 

(ii) '1248 equity shares of 'Legalwiz.in Pvt Ltd having face value 

(iii) 'Unsecured optionally convertible Debenture from Kamlo 

Platform Pvt Ltd having Face value of Rs 100 each (No of 

Debenture - 100000) 

 
Investment in Equity Instruments of Associate Company 

(i) 10000 (P.y. 10000) Equity Shares of Tridhya Tech GmBH of € 

 
Investment in Equity Instruments of other companies: 

(i) 32575 (P.y. 32575) Equity Shares of Sourcepro Infotech 

(ii) 7049020 (P.y. 7049020) Equity Shares of Stitched Textile 

(iii) Innovious Software 

  

 37.52 37.52 

 151.71 151.71 

  
100.00 

 
100.00 

(b) 4.45 4.45 

 
(c) 

 
229.98 

 
229.98 

 140.98 140.98 

Total 664.64 664.64 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  - 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  - 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 664.64 664.64 

Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments  - 

 

14 Long-Term Loans And Advances 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 Unsecured, Considered good 

(a) Loan to Related Party 

(b) Loan to Others 

Other loans and advances 

(i) Advance from Immovable Property 

(ii) Advance Tax and TDS (Net of Provision for Tax) 

 
6.09 

2681.67 

 
19.75 

2,027.64 

- 

- 

0.38 

Total 2687.76 2,047.77 

 

 

15 Other Non-Current Assets 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

(b) 

 
Fixed Deposits Balances (includes fixed deposits 

Security Deposits 

 
2.00 

96.66 

 
1.88 

109.57 

  98.66 111.45 
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16 Current Investments 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

 
Fixed Deposit with Bank 

Unquoted Other Current Investments 

Code Colonies Pvt. Ltd. (Lower of cost and Market value) 

Nexone Tech Pvt. Ltd. (Lower of cost and Market value) 

 
10.33 

 
0 

64.51 

0.5 

0.25 

  10.33 65.26 

 

17 Trade Receivables 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 

 
(a) 
(b) 

 
Unsecured, Considered Good 

- Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date 

- Other Trade Receivables 

- From Related party 

 

 
0.00 

808.95 

0.00 

 

 
- 

1,407.74 

Total 808.95 1,407.74 

 
Notes: 

Trade receivables ageing schedule for March 31, 2025 

Sr. No. Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  
Total   

< 6 Months 
6 Months - 

1 Year 
1 - 2 Year 2 - 3 Year 

 

1 Undisputed 

Trade 

receivables – 

considered 
good 

808.95 - - -  808.95 

2 Undisputed 

Trade 

Receivables – 

considered 
doubtful 

- - - -  - 

3 Disputed 

Trade 

Receivables 

considered 
good 

- - - -  - 

4 Disputed 

Trade 

Receivables 

considered 
doubtful 

- - - -  - 

Total  808.95 - - -  808.95 

Total - Billed 808.95 

Add: Unbilled Receivables - 

Total 808.95 
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Trade receivables ageing schedule for March 31, 2024 

Sr. No. Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  
Total   

< 6 Months 
6 Months - 

1 Year 
1 - 2 Year 2 - 3 Year 

 

 

 
1 

Undisputed 

Trade 

receivables – 

considered 

good 

1,277.74 -  
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

 1,277.74 

 

 
2 

Undisputed 

Trade 

Receivables – 

considered 

doubtful 

 
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

  
 
 

 
- 

 

 
3 

Disputed 

Trade 

Receivables 

considered 

good 

 
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

  
 
 

 
- 

 

 
4 

Disputed 

Trade 

Receivables 

considered 

doubtful 

 
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 

 
- 

  
 
 

 
- 

Total  1,277.74 - - -  1,277.74 

Total - Billed 1,277.74 

Add: Unbilled Receivables 130.00 

Total 1,407.74 

 

 

18 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 

 
(a) 

(b) 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

- Cash-in-Hand 

- Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 

 

 
9.88 

39.45 

 

 
9.95 

135.44 

Total 49.33 145.39 
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19 Short-Term Loans And Advances 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

  
Unsecured, (Considered good, unless stated otherwise) 

  

(a) Receivable from Related Parties 0.00 815.89 

(b) Advance Tax 0.32 23.80 

(c) Others 0.00 
 

 Considered Good unless otherwise specified   

 (i) Vendor Advances 5.67 - 
 (ii) Staff Advances 4.36 0.70 
 (iii) Loan to Others 5934.84 0.75 

 (iv) Advance for purchase of shares 0.00 - 
 (v) Loans and advance to related party 472.33  

(d) Interest accrued but not due 0.74  

Total 6,418.25 841.14 

 

 

20 Other Current Assets 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

  
Unbilled Revenue 

 
0.00 

 
- 

Reimbursements & Receivables 2.83 0.14 

Prepaid Expenses 14.72 10.55 

Balance with Revenue Authorities 381.24 205.20 

Advance to Suppliers 0.05  

Security Deposit 1.16 1.99 

Total 399.99 217.88 
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21 Revenue from Operations 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 

Sale of Services 3595.10 3,527.76 

Total 3,595.10 3,527.76 

 

22 Other Income 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Interest Income 

 
532.42 

 
260.77 

(b) Interest Income on Income Tax Refund 0.53 - 

(c) Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.00 19.28 

(d) Discount Received 0.30 51.62 

(e) Rent Income 32.46 11.46 

(f) Gain on Translation of Foreign Exchange 17.32 0.28 

(g) Miscellaneous Income 65.75 17.69 

(h) Sundry balance written off 1.85 7.69 

(i) IT Subsidy Income 15.48 - 
   

Total 666.10 368.79 

 

 
23 

 
Purchases & Operating Expenses 

As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

(b) 

 
Web Development Expenses 

Purchase 

 
1251.14 

0.17 

 
575.05 

- 

Total 1,251.31 575.05 

 

24 Employee Benefit Expenses 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Salaries and Allowances 

 
1842.22 

 
2,015.41 

(b) Remuneration to Directors and KMPs 24.00 48.00 

(c) Contribution to Provident Fund and ESIC 1.61 2.06 

(d) Gratuity Expenses 31.03 83.78 

(e) Staff welfare expenses 25.62 46.84 

(f) Professional Tax 0.06 - 
   

Total 1924.56 2196.09 

 

25 Finance Cost 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Bank Charges (Including Loan Processing Fees) 

 
19.73 

 
7.83 

(b) Interest on Borrowings 594.24 366.31 

(c) Interest on Late Payment of Taxes 6.90 4.32 

(d) Interest on Tds 0.02  

   

Total 620.89 378.46 
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26 Other Expenses 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Auditor's Remuneration 

 
3.32 

 
3.64 

(b) Business Promotion Expenses 0.00 - 

(c) Electricity, Power & Fuel 24.86 25.68 

(d) Insurance Charges 4.90 0.86 

(e) Miscellaneous fees and expenses 27.45 30.05 

(f) Printing & Stationery 2.17 2.40 

(g) Legal & Professional Fee 50.92 176.77 

(h) Membership & Subscription 0.00 3.93 

(i) Office Expenses 44.12 48.65 

(j) Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 35.89  

(k) Postage & Courier 0.00  

(l) Rates and Taxes 12.72 1.16 

(m) Rent 99.78 56.49 

(n) Repair & Maintenance 3.12 9.25 

(o) Technical Consulting Fees 0.00 2.24 

(p) Sundry Balances Written Off 0.79 23.14 

(q) Webhosting and Portal Charges 49.20 68.09 

(r) Web Development Expenses 0.00 - 

(s) Telephone & Internet Charges 6.26 6.79 

(t) Travelling Expenses 80.48 58.02 

(u) GST Expense 0.00  

(v) Loss on Translation of Foreign Exchange 0.00 5.62 

(w)  Commission Expense 12.07  

(x)  Web Domain and Subscription 0.11  

(y)  Conveyance Charges 2.63  

(z)  Software Consulting Fees 2.08  

(aa) Capital loss 51.47  

(ab)  Other Expenses 3.54  

Total 517.87 522.78 

 Note:   

 
(i) 

(i) Remuneration to Auditors (including service tax wherever 

applicable): 

  

 As Auditors -Statutory Audit 

As Advisors, or in any other capacity, in respect of 

Taxation Matters 

3.32 3.39 

 For tax audit 

For Others 

For reimbursement of expenses 

 0.25 

Total 3.32 3.64 

 

27 Earning Per Share 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 

 
(a) 

 
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders 

  

 (₹) -357.37 -49.19 

(b) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 2,32,88,000.00 2,32,88,000.00 

(c) Nominal Value of each share (₹) 10.00 10.00 

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share -1.53 -0.21 
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28 Related Party Disclosures 

(a) As per AS-18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, following are the related parties: 

S.N. Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship 

1 Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand Managing Director 

2 Vinay Shivji Dangar Director 

3 Gauravkumar Barot CEO and Director 

4 Raj Arjanbhai Ahir Director 

5 Bhanvi Choudhary Company Secretary (w.e.f february 15,2024) 

6 Rahul Labana CFO 

7 Gaurav Hasmukhray Shah Previous CFO 

8 Bhavna Marand Relative of director 

9 Momatos Retail Private Limited Ramesh Marand and Vinay Dangar is Director 

10 Tridhya Legal Consultant Llp Ramesh Marand is Designated Partner 

 
11 

 
Inexture Solutions Llp 

Ramesh Marand and vinay danger are Designated 

Partners 

 
12 

 
Inexture Solutions Limited 

Ramesh Marand and Vinay Dangar are Directors & 

Shareholders 

 
13 

Tridhya Innovation Llp Ramesh Marand, vinay danger and Raj arjanbhai  

ahir are Designated Partners 

14 Tridhya Enterprise Llp Ramesh Marand and Raj Arjanbhai Ahir are 

15 Shaligram Infotech Llp Ramesh Marand is Designated Partner 

16 Tridhya Infra LLP Raj Ahir is a partner in the firm 

17 Ashapura Chinaclay Co Llp Vinay Dangar is Designated Partner 

18 Tridhya Silwatech Information Technology Co. L.L.C Ramesh Marand is a member of the Company 

19 Tridhya Tech Gmbh Associates Entity 

20 Tana IT Services Pvt Ltd Common directors 

21 Rajeshkumar Maheshvari (upto 13-02-2024) Director of subsidiary company 

22 Dimple Maheshwari (upto 13-02-2024) Relative of the director of subsidiary company 

23 Kruti Barot Relative of director of subsidiary company 

24 Amitkumar Satishbhai Prajapati Director of subsidiary company 

25 Dipali Prajapati Relative of director of subsidiary company 

26 Krish Rajeshbhai Thakkar Director of subsidiary company 

27 Nilesh Malsana Director of subsidiary company 

28 Mahipatsingh Sagar Shareholder of subsidiary company 

29 Growthsquare Solutions Pvt Ltd Common directors of subsidiary company 

30 Simranjeet Kaur Independent Director 

31 Hetal Somani Independent Director 

32 Ashutosh Chhawchharia Independent Director 

33 Inexture Solutions Inc Ramesh Marand is Director of its holding company 

 

(b) Details of transactions with related party during the year and balances as at the year end: (₹ in Lakhs) 

 
Particulars 

For the year ended 

March, 2025 

For the year ended 

March, 2024 

Remuneration   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 24.00 48.00 
   

Salary   

Gaurav Hasmukhray Shah 0.30 1.13 

Gaurav Kumar Barot 32.40 - 

Bhanvi Choudhary 2.03 - 

Rahul Labana 8.15 - 

Amitkumar Satishbhai Prajapati 4.28 - 

Dipali Prajapati 1.34 1.65 

Kruti Barot - 0.20 
   

Seating Fees   

Simranjeet Kaur 0.75 - 

Hetal Somani 2.00 - 

Ashutosh Chhawchharia 1.26 - 
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Particulars 
For the year March, 

2025 

For the year March, 

2024 

Rent Income   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 3.00 3.00 

Ashapura Chinaclay Co Llp 0.60 0.60 

Inexture Solutiions LLP - 38.64 

Inexture Solutiions Limited - 12.88 

   

Expenses Reimbursement   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 11.87 11.44 

Vinay Shivji Dangar 0.68 - 

Raj Ahir 1.00 - 

Bhavna Marand 1.99 - 

Rahul Labana 1.11 - 

   

Web Development Expenses/Professional Fees/Other Expesnses   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand - 36.56 

Tridhya Legal Consultant Llp - 1.61 

Inexture Solutions Ltd 34.42 - 

Inexture Solutions LLP - 8.80 

Shaligram Infotech Llp 14.43 5.11 

Tana IT Services Pvt Ltd 14.40 - 

Tridhya Innovation Llp 2.47 - 

Bhanvi Choudhary - 1.13 
   

Sale of Services   

Momatos Retail Private Limited - 1.25 

Tridhya Innovation Llp 7.43 0.03 

Shaligram Infotech Llp - 106.97 

Tridhya Silwatech Information Technology Co. L.L.C 96.24 - 

Inxeture Solutions Inc 200.70  

Tridhya Tech GMBH - 20.20 
   

Professional services   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP - 7.00 

Inexture Solutiions LLP - 31.07 

Tana IT Services Private Limited - 3.20 
   

Interest received   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 50.19 3.62 

Growthsquare Solutions Pvt Ltd 198.29 - 

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 1.25 0.69 
   

Loans & advances given   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 2,461.58 2,098.26 
   

Loans & advances received back   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 2,527.03 1,733.00 

Vinay Shivji Dangar - 311.56 

   

Sale of Fixed Assets   

Tridhya Infra Llp - 19.53 

   

Unsecured Loan Payment   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 889.10 1,193.79 

Vinay Shivji Dangar 351.29 - 
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Particulars 
For the year March, 

2025 

For the year March, 

2024 

Unsecured Loan Taken   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 3,648.15 3,183.79 

Gaurav Barot 40.00 - 

Vinay Dangar - 342.00 
   

Interest expenses   

Vinay Dangar - 9.29 

Tridhya Enterprises LLP 31.43 53.26 

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 162.96  

 
Outstanding Balances 

Particulars 
For the year March, 

2025 

For the year March, 

2024 

Remuneration Payable   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 19.97 35.13 
   

Salary Payable   

Gaurav Kumar Barot 3.93 - 

Bhanvi Choudhary 0.12 - 

Rahul Labana 0.70 - 
   

Expenses Payable   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 11.61 0.87 

Raj Arjanbhai Ahir 0.02 - 
   

Trade Payables   

Tridhya Legal Consultant Llp  1.44 

Shaligram Infotech Llp 15.58 - 

Tana IT Services Pvt Ltd 7.20  

Mahipatsingh Sagar 6.00  

   

Trade Receivables   

Tridhya Tech GMBH - 0.35 

Tridhya Silwatech Information Technology Co. L.L.C 70.03 - 

Tridhya Innovation Llp 8.02  

Tridhya Enterprise Llp 0.54 - 

Momatos Retail Private Limited 0.13 - 

Inxeture Solutions Inc 15.71  

   

Interest Payable   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 161.02  

   

Interest Receivable   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 45.01  

   

Unsecured loan taken   

Mahipatsingh Sagar 11.60 - 

Nilesh Malsana 16.15  

Gaurav Barot 40.00 - 

Vinay Dangar - 351.29 
   

Long Term Borrowing   

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 3,496.35 752.30 

Tridhya Enterprise Llp 481.51 165.96 
   

Loans and Advances   

Tridhya Enterprise LLP 471.40 815.79 
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29 Amount Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Below are Micro and Small Scale Business Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more then 45 days as at 

March 31st 2025. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro , Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has 

been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.  

 
S. N. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current 

1 Principal amount due to suppliers registered 

under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as 

at year end. 

- 33.88 - - 

2 Interest due to suppliers registered under the 

MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end. 

- - - - 

3 Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered 

under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day 

during the year. 

- - - - 

4 Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of 

MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the 

MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during 

the year. 

- - - - 

5 Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to 

suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 

beyond the appointed day during the year. 

- - - - 

6 Interest due and payable towards suppliers 

registered under MSMED Act, for payments 

already made. 

- - - - 

7 Further interest remaining due and payable for 

earlier years. 

- - - - 

 
30 Gratuity Plan 

The following table set out the status of Gratuity Plan as required by AS -15. 

Company A: Tridhya Tech Limited 

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balance of Present Value of defined benefits: 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 115.34 33.51 

Acquisition Adjustment - - 

Transfer in/(out) obligation -24.40  

Interest Cost 6.76 2.36 

Past Service Cost (Vested Employees) - - 

Past Service Cost (Un-vested Employees) - - 

Current Service Cost 25.71 15.37 

Curtailment Cos - - 

Settlement Cost - - 

Benefits Paid -1.38 -1.45 

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on the Obligation -35.09 65.55 

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 86.95 115.34 

Assumptions  

Interest Rate (p.a.) 6.55% 7.15% 

Salary Growth Rate (p.a.) 10% per annum 10% for first 3 years & 

7.5% thereafter 
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Company B:Contcentric IT Services Private Limited 

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balance of Present Value of defined benefits: 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning - - 

Acquisition Adjustment - - 

Transfer in/(out) obligation 24.40  

Interest Cost 0.80 - 

Past Service Cost (Vested Employees) - - 

Past Service Cost (Un-vested Employees) - - 

Current Service Cost 7.14 - 

Curtailment Cost - - 

Settlement Cost - - 

Benefits Paid -0.26 - 

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on the Obligation -4.18 - 

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 27.88 - 

Assumptions  

Interest Rate (p.a.) 6.55% 7.30% 

Salary Growth Rate (p.a.) 10% per annum 10% for first 3 years & 

7.5% thereafter 

 
Company C: Vedity Software Private Limited 

The Company has not provided for gratuity liability. 

 
Company D: Basilroot Technologies Private Limited 

The Company has not provided for gratuity liability. 

 
Company E: Tableflow Tech Private Limited 

The Company has not provided for gratuity liability. 

 
Company F: Codup Technologies Private Limited 

The Company has not provided for gratuity liability. 

 
31 The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of Information technology services . This in the context of Accounting Standard (AS 17) 

“Segment Reporting”, notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, constitutes one single primary segment.  The 

Company does not have a secondary segment. Accordingly, disclosures required under AS 17 are not applicable. 

 

 
Additional Regulatory Information as per Para Y of Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013: 

i. The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements 

are duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company. 

ii. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment. 

iii. The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties 

(as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with  any other person, that are: 

(a) repayable on demand or 

(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment 

 
iv. The Company does not have any capital work-in-progress. 

v. During the period ended March 31, 2025, the Company has intangible assets under development as follows: 

 

 
Particulars 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Less than 1 

year 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
 

More than 3 years 
 

Total 

Projects in progress 112.22 87.51  - 199.73 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - - 
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VI. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder. 

VII. The Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and quarterly returns or 

statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts. 

VIII. The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

IX. The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 

Companies Act, 1956 

X. There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

XI. The company does not have any investments and hence, compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 

of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable. 

 
XII. Key Ratios: 

 
Sr No 

 
Ratios 

 
2024-25 

 
2023-24 

Differences 

2024-25 V/S 

2023-24 

 
Observations (If variance is more than 25%) 

 
1 

 
Current Ratio 

 
0.90 

 
1.88 

 
-52.43% 

The significant decrease is due to a substantial  

rise in current liabilities outpacing the increase 

in current assets, impacting the company's 

short-term liquidity position. 

 
2 

 
Debt- Equity Ratio 

 
2.33 

 
0.82 

 
183.68% 

The sharp increase is primarily attributable to 

a notable rise in total debt during the year,  

while the shareholders' fund remained largely 

stable or declined slightly. 

 
3 

 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

 
0.18 

 
0.51 

 
-65.60% 

The decline is due to higher debt servicing 

obligations during the year, while earnings 

available to service the debt reduced 

marginally. 

 
4 

 
Return on Equity Ratio 

 
-0.08 

 
-0.01 

 
446.11% 

The increase in negative return is due to the 

widening of net losses in the current year 

compared to the previous year, against a 

relatively stable equity base. 

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA 

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 3.24 3.43 -5.40% 
 

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio NA NA 

 

 
8 

 

 
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 

 

 
-4.00 

 

 
2.81 

 

 
-242.17% 

The drastic change stems from a shift from 

positive to negative working capital, driven by 

an increase in current liabilities, impacting the 

efficiency of capital utilization. 

 
9 

 
Net Profit Ratio 

 
-0.10 

 
-0.01 

 
612.87% 

The significant adverse movement is due to 

increased operating losses in the current year,  

despite stable revenue levels. 

 
10 

 
Return on capital Employed 

 
-0.06 

 
0.00 

 
-11854.03% 

 

The steep negative change is due to losses at  

the EBIT level during the year, coupled with 

lower efficiency in employing capital. 

11 Return on Investment NA NA 
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(FRN – 135024W) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SD/- SD/- SD/- 
CA Marmik Shah 

Partner 

Ramesh Arjanbhai Marand 

(Managing Director) 

Vinay Shivji Dangar 

(Director) 

(MRN - 133926) DIN: 07235447 DIN: 07212051 

 
 

 SD/- SD/- 
Place: Ahmedabad Rahul Labana Bhanvi Choudhary 

Date: May 21, 2025 
UDIN: 25139533BMLCYD1232 

(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 
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